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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9200 1-800-852-3345 ExL 9200

Fix: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 12. 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to
enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. (Vendor #161459), Worcester, Massachusetts, to provide increased
communication access services, by increasing the price limitation by $1,400,000 from $3,903,691
to $5,303,691 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2021, effective
retroactive to November 1,2020, upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% General
Funds.

The original contract was approved by Govemor and Council on June 24, 2015, item #34.
It was subsequently amended with Govemor and Council approval on June 21, 2017, item #19,
and most recently amended with Govemor and Council approval on April 17, 2019, item #8.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the amendment review and approval process took
longer than anticipated. There has been an Increased need for American Sign Language and
other language translation services, and additional funds need to be added to this contract to
allow the Department to cover services retroactive to November 2020. This request is Sole
Source because this action Increases the price limitation by 10% over the original contract
amount and the MOP 150 requires the amendment to t>e labeled as sole source.

The purpose of this request is to add funding to the contract to meet increased
communication access demands of services. The Department complies with Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 by ensuring American Sign Language and other language translation
services are available during all public broadcasts and forums. Additionally, State law (RSA 521-
A and RSA 354-A) requires that an Interpreter be provided all public broadcasts and forums to
ensure effective communication for individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss.

The Deportmeni of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher!. Sununu
and the Hof>orat)le Council
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The Contractor provides spoken language interpretation: American Sign Language;
Certified Deaf Interpreters; Oral Interpreters; Deaf-Blind Tactile Interpreters; Cued Speech
Interpreters; and Communication Access Real-Time Service. All services provided ensure a
uniform and comprehensive approach for all individuals to experience meaningful access to
Department information, programs and services.

The population served includes residents statewide.

Should the Governor not approve this request, the Department will not be able to process
invoices for sen/ices provided in good faith by the Contractor.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% General Funds

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-45-4500010-6127000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Various $628,861.00 $0.00 $628,861.00

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Various $628,861.00 $0.00 $628,861.00

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Various $630,000.00 $0.00 $630,000.00

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Various $630,000.00 $0.00 $630,000.00

Sub Total $2,517,722.00 $0.00 $2,517,722.00

05-95-42-422010-7921000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

HHS: OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Various $692,984.50 $0.00 $692,984.50

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services Various $692,984.50 $1,400,000.00 $2,092,984.50

Sub Total $1,385,969.00 $f, 400,000.00 $2,785,969.00

Overall Total $3,903,691.00 $1,400,000.00 $5,303,691.00

Attachment • Bureau of Behavioral Health

Financial Detail
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Communication Access Services contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 24,2015 (Item #34) as amended on June 21,2017 (Item # 19), and as amended on April 17,2019,
(Item #8), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified
in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and appropriate State approval; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$5,303,691.

2. Modify Exhibit B-13 Budget, Amendment # 2 Spoken Language Interpretation and Translation
Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Add Exhibit B-14 Budget, Amendment # 2 ASL, CART and Other Services for Individuals with
Deafness and Hearing Loss, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment Amendment #2, Section 3, to
read:

3. The Contractor shall use and apply all contract funds for allowable direct and indirect costs
to provide services in Exhibit A1 and Exhibit A2, in accordance with Exhibit B-5 -
Amendment #1 through Exhibit B-14 Amendment #3.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment Amendment #2, Subsection
5.1.2, to read:

5.1.2. The units of services provided, in accordance with Exhibit A-1 and Exhibit A-2 which shall
be paid on a fee-for-service basis the rates specified in Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 through
Exhibit B-14 Amendment #3.

6. Modify Exhibit 8, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment Amendment #2, Section 8, to
read:

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits
within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may
be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval
of the Governor and Executive Council.

jk
Ascentria Community Services, Inc

16-DHHS-OHS-OMHRA-01-A03

Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 3 Date 3/18/2021
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be retroactively effective to November 1, 2020 upon the
date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Associate commissioner

Date

^OocuSignid by:

Ann H. N. Landry
■ ?^PAP'»Tcr»pcaja«»

Name: Ann h. n. Landry

Title:
Associate Commissioner

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

chief of staff & External Relations

Date

-DocuSignad by:

». ^^nTn^4ln7QC.lCg

Name: Jeffrey Kinney

Title:
chief of Staff & External Relations

Ascentria Community Services, inc

16-DHHS-OHS-OMHRA-01 -AOS

Amendment #3

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been revievwed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-OocuSlgnM by;

Attorney

06Ci*owgcaac<*c-

Date Name: Catherine Pinos

Title:
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Ascentria Community Services, Inc Amendment #3

16-DHH$-OH$-OMHRA-01 -AOS Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit B 13 Amendment #3

Budget
Spoken Language Interpretation and Translation Services

Worttdav Hours (M-F, 8d0 a.m. - 4:30 e,m)

After Hours. Holidays, 8 Weekertds and
Emergencies'* Hourly Travel Rates"* Travel Reimbursement**"

July 1,2030-June 30. 3031
SERVICE TYPE

Fee for Service

Rate $0.00

s of Service

Units Proposed
0.00 Total Cost of Service

Fee for Service

Rate $0.00

8 of Service

Units Proposed
0.00

Total Cost of

Sendee

Fee for Service

Rats $0.00

Billable Portal

to Portal Hours

0.00

Total Cost of

Transit Hours

$00.00

Travel

ReimtxKSement

Rate $.00

Billable

Mileage 0,0

Total Cost of

Travel $0.00

Sooken rporelanl Ljnauaoe Interoretatlon

Face-to-Face (FTR ln-F>erson intetDre ation* 1
' Blledal 2 hour minimum, and
t/ieresAartn 15 minute increments.

Any consecutive apfiointments at the
seme location by the same interpreter

** Define emergertdes:
Requests made vath less than a

24-hour notice

'*' Define travel rates:

$35.00ftu travel lime rate

activated beyond a 20-mile
radius

"" Define travel reimbursement

Travel f^mbursement is based

on the federal rats

Foreivi Lanouaoe Inleroratalion $  53.00 4.256 S  225.568.00 $  73.00 2486 $ 181,478.00 $  35.00 750 $ 26.250.00 $  0,575 15000 $  6,625.00

CertitieO Foreign Language Interpretati $  56.00 10 S  560.00 S  76.00 5 S  380.00 $  40.00 10 $  400,00 $  0.560 100 $  56.00

$  0.560 13000 $  7.280.00

b). Over-the-Phone Internrnlatino lOPIl

AJ1 languages $1.40/minute $  1.40 195.010 $  273.014.00 N/A N/A N/A

Edtlbit B 9 Amendmeni iir2 $  5.00 1.000 $  5.000,00

Budget 1

c). Sooken Lanouaoe Interoretatlon and T ansiation ServictJS 1

AN spoken languages $1.85/minute $  1.85 5.000 $  9.350.00 N/A N/A 1 N/A

Sltft-.Srwtrrfir rWwiicatnd Intworetafirvt nionkl

Block Schedule • 4 sites for 75 hrs intei S  47.00 1.349 $  63.403.00 N/A N/A N/A

2)' Translation Services

Foreign Language to Ertgllsh:

Spanish. Portuguese Languages $  0,20 300.000 $  40.000.00 N/A N/A N/A

Western European $  0,28 50.000 $  14.000,00 N/A N/A N/A

Eastern European $  0.34 5.000 S  1.700.00 N/A N/A N/A

Other (Arabic. Hindi. Chinese. Nepali, $  . 0,40 250.000 $  100,000.00 N/A N/A N/A

English to Foreign Language: 1
Spanish. Portuguese Languages $  0.20 65.000 $  13,000.00 N/A N/A N/A

Western European $  0.28 15.876 $  4.446 N/A IN/A N/A

Eastern European $  0.34 3.500 $  1,190.00 N/A N/A N/A

Other (Arabic, Hindi. Chirtese. Nepali, $  0.40 35.000 $  10,000.00 N/A N/A N/A

Formattino Per Page $  10,00 101 $  1,008.00 N/A N/A N/A

24 hour turnaround - surcharge per wa $  0.10 100.000 $  10,000.00 N/A N/A N/A

English to Braille $  0.30 5.000 $  1,500.00 N/A N/A N/A

Proofreading / Editing $  40.00 25 1$ 1,000.00 N/A N/A N/A

1

3)- Services for Individuals who have Low-Vision 1

Reading and recording services $  45.00 30 1 $ 900.00 N/A N/A N/A

$ N/A N/A N/A

"»)- Other 1
internet access fee $  150.00 gi

perlocadon 4 S .•>400.00 This amount not included in this budget as the same item is listed in the Comm. Access Budget and it is counted there

Samsung Tablets/IPADS $  464.61 10 $  4,646.10 This amount not included in this budget as the same item is listed In the Comm. Access Budget and it is counted there

Sub Totals 1 $ 775.539 $ 181.858.00 $  26,650.00 $  15.961.00
1

Grarrd Total of Proposal 1 S  1.000.008

Aseencrta CommunlCY Services, IrK

lS-DHHS-OHS-OMHRA-01

ExhlM B-13 AjTrendmenl*3

P«Ke 1 o<1

Contractor InHialt;.

Date
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Exhibit B 14 AinendmenI 13

Budfel

A3U CART, and Otlt«r ScfVicei for IndMduab with Ocsftvnr and Hearitif lott • C0V10 Budfct

July 1. 2020 to June 30. 2021
SERVICE TYPfc

Fee (or Service

RaleSO.OO

» of Service

Units Proposed
0.00 Total Cost of Service

Fee for Service

Rate $0.00

# of Service

Units Proposed
0.00

Total Cost of

Service

Fee for Service

Rate $0.00

Biltable Portal

to Portal Hours

0.00

Total Cost of

Transit Hours

$00.00

Travel

Rermbursement

Rate $.00

Biliabie

Mileage 0.0
Total Cost of

Travel $0.00

1)- In-Pnntnn IntnrrtmtaHnn

■ BUod atxcfding to NH DOE
authorized rates and indude

administrative overhead

- Define emergencies;

Requests made in less than 24
hours

Define travel rates: Travel

time is portal to portal and
covered in hourly fee for service

**" Define travel reimt>ursemeni;

Travel ReirrAursement is based

on the federal rate

a). American Sion Lanouaoe (ASL1 Intern $  78.00 2878 S  224.484.00 $  98.00 10001 S 98.000.00 Included S  0.575 20000 $  11,500.00

Ertglisb to Foreign l^anguage %  105.00 10 S  1.050.00 $  125.00 2 S  250.00 Included $  0.560 300 $  168.00

(if 2 interpreters required for ail of trie
above, each vdil be charged
separately) $  0.560 20000 $  11.200.00

b). Certified Deaf intemreiatinn ICDIl $  92.00 250 S  23.000.00 $  110.00 5 S  550.00 Included $  0.560 2500 $  1.400.00

c>- Oral InternretatinrVTranslilAfaiinn $  78.00 10 S  780.00 S  98.00 5 $  490.00 Included $  0.560 1000 $  560.00

.. . !

d>. Deaf-Riinri Tantile intemrelation S  78.00 10 S  780.00 $  98.00 5 $  490.00 Included $  0.560 1000 $  560.00
1

$  0.560 1000 S  560.00

«)• Cued Speech mteroretatlon $  78.00 10 S  780.00 $  98.00 5 S  490.00 Included i
1
1

2)- CART Jierviree f.34trtitr minlmiiml S  157.00 30 $  4.710.00 N/A $  70.00 10 $  700.00 $  0.560 1 3000 $  1.680.00
Protector for CART 1 $ 45.00 5 $  225.00 N/A 1

i 1

3)- Video Remote Intemretation fVRII 1 1

ASL$3.00/miule i  3.00 1275 S  3.825.00 N/A N/A N/A 1

Internet access fee p< $  150.00 9 N/A N/A N/A

1  per location 4 S  ' 5.400.00 N/A N/A N/A

ISamsuno Tebiets/lpads i  461.60 10 $  4.616.00 N/A N/A N/A

1 1

4).

Services for Individuals who

S  50.00 10 S  500.00 $  70.00 2 $  140.00 $  35.00 5 $  175.00 $  0.560 200 $  112.00exoerience Soeech hnnalrments

English to Foreion Lanouaoe $  70.00 5 $  350.00 S  90.00 2 $  180.00 $  35.00 5 $  175.00 $  0.560 200 $  112.00

Sub Totals $  270.500.00 $ 100.590.00 $  1.050.00 $  27.852.00
1

Grand Total of Proposal 1 $  399.992.00

Ascentria Community Servicdt. Inc

16-OHHSOHS^MHRA-Ol

ExhlM B-14 Amendment *3

Pate 1 of 1

Jk
Contractor Inltlalt;

0«e:_i/ia/2D21
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY

SERVICES, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 13, 2011. 1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secrctarj' of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this oITice is concerned.

Business ID: 652197

Certificate Number: 0005296319

Um

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOE,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I7ihdavof March A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secreiar)' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Tara E. Browne , hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Ascentria Community Services. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 8 , 2020 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That ̂  Jeffrey P. Kinnev (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Ascentria Community Services. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: mm

Name: Tara E Browne
Title: Clerk

Rev. 03/24/20
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/KCORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/OCWYYYY)

9/30/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROOUCEA

Hays Companies Inc.

133 Federal Street, 4th Floor

Boston Mh 02110

NAME*"'' Tina Housman
PHONE FAX
lAIC No F.I1; IMC. No);

AO^Ess- ̂ ousmanShayscos^anies. com
INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURERA Philadelphia Insurance Companies 92535

INSURED

Ascentria Care Alliance

14 East Worcester Street

Suite 300

Worcester MA 01604

INSURER B Philadelphia Indemnitv Ins Co ' 18058

INSURER C The First Liberty Insurance Corporatior 33588

INSURER D

INSURERE

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUM8ER:20-21 GL, Auto, Umb, WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTVVITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

[S55C
JtiSQ.

lUSIf
WVD

TYPE OF INSURANCE POLiCYNUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/DO/YYYYI
POLICY EXP
IMM/DD/YYYYl LIMITS

INSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE nn OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

BAMACeTOftENTEB
PREMISES (Ea occurrwcel

PH{>K2ieT472 10/1/2020 10/1/2021 MEO EXP (Any oo< pyton)

PERSONAL 4 ADV INJURY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER

POUCY

OTHER

soAic ciPni I nrrcico r

LOC

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - C0MPA3P AGG

1,000,000

100,000

25,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acodenti 1,000,000

ANYAUTO

AU OVWED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Ptf parson)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS

PH{>K21BT4«e 10/1/2020 10/1/2021 BODILY INJURY (Par acdOant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par aeddantl

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE 10,000,000

AGGREGATE 10,000,000

RETENTION S PHUB7403S5 10/1/2020 10/1/2021

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory In NH)

II ya*. das^Oa urxlar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balcw

PER
STATUTE

OTH-

□ E.L EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,000
RC6-611-2622S2-010 10/1/2020 10/1/2021 E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1,000,000

E.U DISEASE - POLICY UMIT 1,000,000

ProfRsaional Liability PHPK2ie7472 10/1/2020 10/1/2021 Aggragala Limit

Each Professional tnddenl

$3,000,000

$1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACOR0101. Additional Ramarlis Schedule, may be attached If more spice is requirad)
Additional Naraed Insured: Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

Evidence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

James Hays/GSCHIC

ACORD 25(2014/01)
INS025 (201401)

©1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

261 Sheep Davis Road, Suite A-1. Concord, NH 03301
ascentria.org | 603.224.6111 j info@ascentria.org

Formerly Lutheran Social Services of New England

Mission statement:

We are called to strengthen communities by empowering people to respond to life's challenges.

Vision statement:

We envision thriving communities where everyone has the opportunity to achieve theirfull

potential regardless of background or disadvantage. We become recognized leaders for

innovative community sendees. Together with our partners, we inspire people to help one

another reach beyond their current circumstances and realize new possibilities.

Empowering People. Strengthening Communities.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

AUDIT/.TAX, AND

CONSULTING

i \
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Worcester, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Organizations), which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities,
changes In net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America: this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

A member of

©Nexia
International

A member of

(1)
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary as of
June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Effect of Adopting New Accounting Standard

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Organizations have adopted Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The
adoption of this standard did not have a significant impact on the Organizations' reported historical
revenue. Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 22, 2020

(2)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net of Estimated Uncollectible Accounts

Prepaid Expenses
Vehicle Inventory

Due from Third Party

Total Current Assets

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land

Building

Building Improvements
Leasehold Improvements

Furniture and Equipment

Vehicles

Equipment Held Under Capital Lease
Computer Equipment and Software

Total"

Less; Accumulated Depreciation
Total Property and Equipment

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

101,892

$  1,088,674 $

4,618.979 3,868,580

84,975 87,471

128,893 70,292
- 543

5,921,521 4,026,886

841,000 977,537

45,314 45,314

85,798 85,798

968,006 953,881

353,467 353,467

246,311 246,311

454,071 344,994

499,374 499,374

147,017 147,017

2,799,358 2,676,156

1,901,549 1,790,804

897,809 885,352

5,781 5,781

101,892 104,742

104,742

$  7.768.003 $ 6.000.298

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Revenue

Due to State of Maine

Total Current Liabilities

DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net of Current Maturities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit)

$  32,752 $  43,100

821,453 922,390

1,630,694 1,055,170

311,847 176,471

468,768 62,472

3,265,514 2,259,603

3,610,245 2,802,397

409,782 442,534

7,285,541 5,504,534

(443,382) (566,615)
925,844 1,062,379

482,462 495,764

$  7.768.003 $  6.000.298

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiai Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

NET ASSET REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTION

Grant and Contract Revenue $ 30,973,224 $ 29,295,558

Program Service Revenue 4,454,814 5,012,348

Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue 645,720 •

Donated Vehicles 1,818,418 1,734,097

In-Kind Donations 20,923 22,246

Net Assets Released from Restriction Used for Operations 201,348 282,886

Other Income 680,651 450,077

Total Revenues 38,795,098 36,797,212

EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages 19,179,196 18,359,186

Employee Benefits 4,297,125 4.103,776

Occupancy Costs 1,985,030 2,074,571

Operating Supplies and Expenses 463,657 444,508

Professional Fees 2,244,674 2,393,074

Garage Expenses 776,542 864,974

Donated Vehicle Expenses 924,000 819,292

Client Support Expenses 462,904 546,303

Translation Expenses 612,048 534,107

Repairs and Maintenance 332,791 389,201

Travel Expenses 794,550 867,166

Educational Events and Meetings 47,931 43,697

Management Fees 5,395,119 5,020,851

Taxes 567,842 555,336

Recruitment Advertising 10,004 9,918

Advertising 157,095 181,151

Licenses and Fees 5,094 7,389

Custodial Fees 12,994 6,009

Insurance 197,295 190,029

Interest 32,965 34,677

Bad Debt Expenses 52,051 56,981

Depreciation and Amortization 131,307 97,738

Total Expenses 38,682,214 37,599,934

OPERATING GAIN (LOSS) 112,884 (802,722)

NONOPERATING ACTIVITY

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment 10,349 17,873

Equity Transfers, Net - (57,346)

Total Nonoperating Activity 10,349 (39,473)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) WITHOUT DONOR
RESTRICTIONS $  123,233 $  (842,195)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

Without Donor With Donor

Restriction Restriction Total

BALANCE-JUNE 30, 2018 $  275,580 $  1,278,529 $  1,554,109

Decrease in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions (842,195) - (842,195)

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party - 66,736 66,736

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - Operations (282,886) (282,886)

Change in Net Assets (842,195) (216,150) (1,058,345)

BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2019 (566,615) 1,062,379 495,764

Decrease in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions 123,233 - 123,233

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party - 64,813 64,813

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - Operations (201,348) (201,348)

Change in Net Assets (Deficit) 123,233 (136,535) (13,302)

BALANCE-JUNE 30, 2020 $  (443.382) $  925.844 $  482.462

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Program Services Supporting Services

Disability Child Total

Transportation and and Family In-Home Services For Total Management Support Total

Services Mental Health Programs Services Nevr Americans Program and General Fundraising Services Expenses

Salaries and Wages $  936.410 $ 5.540.060 $  3.001,095 $  4,967.565 S 4.472.719 $  18.917.849 $  261.347 S . S  261.347 S  19,179.196

Employee Benefits 204.976 1,482.702 559.926 1.098.877 894.519 4,241.000 56,125 - 56.125 4,297.125

Occupancy Costs 105.843 633.124 441,702 46.262 506,536 1,733.467 251.563 - 251.563 1,985.030

Operating Supplies and Expenses 32.973 165.585 88.680 45.825 114,506 447.569 16.088 • 16.088 463,657

Professional Fees 61.456 383.971 1.354.705 5.434 391.293 2,196.859 47.815 - 47.815 2,244,674

Garage and Vehicle Expenses 775.461 916 165 - - 776.542 - - -
776,542

Donated Vehicle Expenses 924.000 . - - - 924.000 • - -
924,000

Client Support Expenses 19.626 31.647 200,925 64 210,412 462.874 30 - 30 462,904

Translation Expenses . 21.739 282 - 587,030 609.051 2,997 - 2.997 612.048

Repairs and Maintenance 26.444 38.069 116.558 53.938 71,180 306.189 26.602 . 26.602 332.791

Travel Expenses 191.640 201.678 136.374 43.072 214.719 787,483 7,067 • 7.067 794.550

Educational Events and Meetings 2.067 9.036 8.311 10.139 9.118 38.671 9,260 - 9.260 47.931

Management Fees • - - - ■ • 5.395,119 - 5.395.119 5.395.119

Taxes - 561.640 . 5.931 271 567.842 - • - 567.842

Recruitment Advertising 3.555 884 1.404 3.691 373 9.907 97 - 97 10.004

Advertising . - - - - • 157.095 - 157.095 157,095

Licenses and Fees 1.691 70 2.696 250 . 4,707 387 • 387 5,094

Custodial Fees . . . . - - - 12,994 12.994 12,994

Insurance 8.014 57,285 34.105 41,583 51.611 192,598 4.697 - 4.697 197,295

Interest - . . . - - 32.965 - 32.965 32,965

Bad Debt Expenses . 3.863 . 37,684 10.503 52.050 1 • 1 52,051

Total B^ore Depreciation

and Amortization 3.294,356 9.132,269 .5,946,928 6.360.315 7.534.790 32.268.658 6.269.255 12.994 6.282.249 38,550.907

Depreciation and Amortization 55,338 2.852 69.917 . 3.200 131.307 . . . 131.307

Total Fimctional Expenses $  3,349.694 $ 9.135.121 $  6.016.845 $  6.360.315 $ 7.537.990 S  32.399.965 S 6.269.255 S 12.994 % 6.282.249 $  38.682.214

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Program Services Supporting Services

DisatHlity Child .Total

Transportation and and Family In-Home Services For Total Management Support Total

Services Mental Health Programs Services New Americans Program and General Fundraising Services Expenses

Salaries and Wages $  968.707 $ 5,735,567 $  2,715,258 $  3,953,013 $ 4,759,294 $. 18,131,839 $  227,347 i S  227,347 S  18.359,186

Employee Benefits 236.075 1,462,866 516,604. 910,093 869,958 3,995,796 107,980 107,980 4,103,776

Occupancy Costs 146.268 655,710 464,178 49,184 515,830 1,831,170 243,401 243,401 2,074,571

Operating Supplies and Expenses 27,189 206,160 64,069 30,160 88,896 416,474 28,034 28,034 444,508

Professional Fees 134.610 387,997 1,540,130 8,646 257,587 2,328,970 64,104 64,104 2,393,074

Garage and Vehicle Expenses 862.333 2,555 • ■ 86 864,974 - - 864,974

Donated Vehicle Expenses 819,292 • - - 819,292 - - 819,292

Client Support Expenses 71 10,162 180,737 22 354,831 545,823 480 480 546,303

Translation Expenses - 30,484 357 - 498,641 529,482 4,625 4,625 534,107

Repairs and Maintenance 49,833 38,191 100,064 72,631 101.896 362,615 26,586 26,586 389,201

Travel Expenses 152,833 228,390 163,221 36,645 272,283 853,372 13,794 13,794 867,166

Educational Events and Meetings 3,164 4,164 14,617 6,798 8,202 36,945 6,752 6,752 43,697

Management Fees • . • . • • 5,020,851 5.020,851 5,020,851

Taxes 502 543,621 - 11,132 81 555,336 • . 555,336

Recruitment Advertising 2.133 215 3,271 3,771 338 9,728 190 190 9,918

Advertising • • - - - - 181,151 181,151 181,151

Licenses and Fees 637 146 3,832 250 563 5,428 1,961 1,961 7,389

Custodial Fees • • • - - - . 6,009 6,009 6,009

Insurance 7,062 59,721 28,969 41,193 49,077 186,022 4,007 . 4,007 190,029

Interest - • - - - - 34,677 . 34,677 34,677

Bad Debt Expenses 188 10,978 ■ 18,229 27,586 56,981 - - - 56,981

Total B^ore Depreciation
and Amortization 3.410,897 9,376,927 5,795,507 5.141,767 7,805,149 31,530,247 5,965,940 6,009 5,971,949 37.502,196

D^eciation and Amortization 26,217 6,041 53,607. . 11,785 97,650 88 . 88 97,738

Total Functional Expenses S  3,437,114 $ 9.382.968 $  5,849,114 $  5,141,767 $ 7,816,934 $  31.627.897 S  5.966.028 s 6.009 $ 5,972.037 $  37.599,934

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets $  (13,302) $  (1,058,345)

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization 131,307 97,738

Bad Debts 52,051 56,981

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment (10,349) (17,873)

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party (64,813) (66,736)

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable (802,450) (583,196)

Prepaid Expenses 2,496 16,431

Deposits 2,850 37,534

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party 201,350 287,285

Vehicle Inventory (58,601) (4,964)

Due to Third Party 543 885

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable (100,937) 5,976

Accrued Expenses 575,524 110,986

Deferred Revenue 135,376 (40,612)

Due to State of Maine 406,296 (118,938)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 457,341 (1,276,848)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Property and Equipment (148,710) (232,172)

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 15,295 22,902

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (133,415) (209.270)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on Long-Term Debt
Advanced from Related Parties, Net

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

(43,100)

807,848

764,748

1,088.674

$  1.088.674

(48,988)

1,361.351

1,312,363

(173,755)

173,755

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash Paid for Interest 32.965 A 34,677

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (ACS) and. Ascentria Community Care, Inc. (ACC)
(collectively, the Organizations) are corporations exempt from tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Intemal Revenue Code (IRC) as a public charity. Effective July 1, 2018, assets were
transferred to the Organizations from Good News Garage - LSS, Inc. (GNG), related
parties, as a result of the combination of operations (see Note 14 for details). The
Organizations provide community service programs to children, families, refugees, and
developmentally disabled adults throughout New England. ACS is the sole corporate
member of ACC. Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc. (Ascentria) is a sole corporate member of
ACS and also serves as the management agent.

The Organizations provide the following programs:

Child and Family Programs - through a variety of programs, the Organizations provide
services related to therapeutic. foster care, unaccompanied refugee minors support,
housing for teen mothers and their children, housing for homeless, small group homes
serving teenagers, various support services and living accommodations for
developmentally, physically and mentally disabled adults and other various social
support programs.

Services for New Americans - through this program, the Organizations seek to provide
resettlement, employment, case management, medical case management, English as a
second language classes, and other support services to refugees, asylees, and
immigrants.

Adoption - through this program, the Organizations provide services related to domestic
and international adoptions.

Transportation Services - provides low-income individuals with transportation, such as
ownership of donated vehicles or access to shared rides, providing these individuals with
access to jobs and other economic opportunities, thus helping them to achieve economic
independence.

Disability and Mental Health - Disability and Mental Health comprise of a wide variety of
programs that enable persons who are economically disadvantaged, have disabilities,
chronic illness, mental illness, deafness and other challenges to become and remain
successful contributors to the communities in which they live and work. Support services
include: Access to medical resources, personal case management customized for
individual needs, 24/7 supervision and support in a residential setting for individuals
diagnosed with chronic and persistent mental illness, and services offered to individuals
diagnosed with mental illness in the comfort and familiarity of their homes.

In-Home Sen/ices - In-Home Care is a licensed Home Health Care agency that offers
comprehensive, non-medical personal care sen/ices to homebound individuals or those
with a disability. In-Home Care caregivers assist in light housekeeping, transportation to
appointments, recreational activities, bathing and personal care, meals, and exercise.
Additional non-medical services supervised by a registered nurse.

(10)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the consolidated financial
position, results of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows, and functional expenses
of the Organizations. Material intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Method of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organizations have been prepared on the
accrual method of accounting. Accordingly, assets are recorded when the Organizations
obtain the rights of ownership or is entitled to claims for receipt arid liabilities are recorded
when the obligation is incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

.  The Organizations consider all short-term debt securities purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance of expected losses. The allowance is
estimated from historical performance and projections of trends. Credit is extended to
customers and collateral is not required. When the accounts become past due. historically,
the Organizations have not charged interest to these accounts.

inventory

Vehicles identified for the purpose of being delivered to prograrn participants are valued
based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the reporting period which
approximates the lower of cost or net realized value.

Program vehicles expected to be sold at retail are recorded based on trade-in value.

Vehicles expected to be sold at wholesale are valued using the average sales proceeds for
all vehicles sold during the reporting period.

Vehicles are recorded as donated vehicles or donated vehicles - wholesale when the

vehicle is received.

(11)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property and EQulpment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Assets with an estimated useful life of more
than one year and a historical cost in excess of $2,500 are capitalized. The Organizations
capitalize acquisitions and improvements, while expenditures for maintenance and repairs
that do not extend the useful lives of the assets are charged to operations. Donated property
and equipment are recorded at its fair market value at date of donation. Gifts of long-lived
assets are reported as net assets without donor restriction support unless donor stipulations
specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to
acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulation
about how long those assets must be maintained, expiration of donor restrictions are
reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed into service.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the
assets.

Related Party Loans Receivable

The Organizations' loan portfolio is comprised on unsecured related party loans receivable
that are noninterest-bearing and have no fixed repayment terms, as detailed in Note 3, and
is considered a single portfolio class. Related party loans receivable are recorded net of an
allowance for expected loan losses (allowance). The Organizations establish an allowance
as an estimate of inherent risk in the Organizations' loan portfolio. Although management
believes the allowance to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from its estimates.

The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses that is charged to expense.
Loan losses are charged off against the allowance when the Organizations determine the
loan balance to be uncollectible. Proceeds received on previously charged off amounts are
recorded as recovery in the year of receipt. The Organizations determined that all related
party loans receivable are fully collectible as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.

The Organizations review the adequacy of the allowance, including consideration of the
relevant risks in the loan portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors
periodically. The Organizations internally monitor related party borrowers to assess the risk
of nonperformance. The Organizations determine that changes are warranted based on
those reviews, the allowance is adjusted.

Net Assets

Net assets of the Organizations are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations.

(12)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Net Assets (Continued)

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met
either by actions of the Organizations and/or the passage of time. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature when the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Oonor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Net assets with donor

restrictions consist of $841,000 and $977,537 for beneficial interest in net assets of
related party and $64,844 and $84,842 other program restrictions for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. There were no net assets invested in perpetuity
as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenue in the
period when earned. The Organizations recognize contributions when cash, securities or
other assets, or an unconditional promise to give is received. Conditional promises to give,
that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return, are not
recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met.

When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released
from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same

operating period are presented as unrestricted support. Contributions in the form of property
are recorded at the fair market value on the date the property is received.

Contract and Grant Revenue

The Organizations derive revenues through cost-reimbursable and unit rate federal and
state contracts and grants, which are conditional grants based on certain performance
requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Accordingly, the
Organizations are subject to the regulations and reporting requirements of the applicable
governmental and grantor agencies. Amounts received are recognized as earned and are
reported as revenue when the Organizations have incurred expenditures in compliance with
specific contract or grant provisions. As of June 30, 2020, there was $2,531,968 of
conditional contributions that have yet to be recognized in the consolidated financial
statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Federal and State Relief Grant Revenue

During 2020, .the Organizations received federal and state grants to provide funding to
respond to the COVlD-19 pandemic. The Organizations received payments from the
CARES Act Provider Relief Fund (PRF), which is administered by the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services (HHS). The Organizations received PRF payments and
recognized revenue in the amount of $184,667 during fiscal year 2020. The revenues
recognized are included in federal and state relief grant revenue on the consolidated
statements of activities. The PRF payments have terms and conditions that the Organization
is required to follow and these funds are subject to reporting requirements and audit. The
PRF payments are subject to potential recoupment by HHS if it is determined that the funds
were not spent in accordance with the terms and conditions. Management believes the
amounts have been recognized appropriately as of June 30, 2020.

Additionally, the Organization received payments from the State of New Hampshire, which is
administered by the Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery (GOFERR). The
Organization received payments and recognized revenue in the amount of $461,053 during
the fiscal year 2020. The revenues recognized are included in federal and state relief grant
revenue on the consolidated statements of activities. The payments have terms and
conditions that the Organization is required to follow and these funds are subject to reporting
requirements and audit. The payments are subject to potential recoupment by GOFERR if it
is determined that the funds were not spent in accordance with the terms and conditions.
Management believes the amounts have been recognized appropriately as of June 30,
2020.

Program Service Revenue

Program sen/ice revenue is from private pay services, translation services, and
interpretation services. Program service revenue is recognized as services are provided
over time.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized in the consolidated financial statements if the services
enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided
by donation.

Donated Vehicle Revenue

Donated vehicle revenue includes vehicles that will be repaired and delivered to program
participants. They are valued based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the
reporting period. Additionally, donated vehicle revenue includes donated vehicles that do not
meet the needs of program participants. These vehicles are sold at auction and valued
based on average proceeds for the reporting period.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs paid for by the Organizations
amounted to $105,943 and $118,678 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Contributions of advertising are recorded at the estimated fair value on the
date of the contribution. The Organizations received contributions of advertising estimated to
have a value of $20,923 and $22,246 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,

respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing the various programs and services are summarized on a functional
basis. Costs are generally identified as to program site, and are then allocated between
programs and supporting services that benefited based on total direct expenses. Salaries
and benefits are allocated on the basis of time and effort. The expenses that are allocated
are the portions of depreciation and interest expense that are not directly attributable to
specific programs or services. These expenses are allocated on a square footage basis.

Income Taxes

The Organizations are nonprofit corporations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC
and are exempt from federal and state income taxes on related income pursuant to Section
501(a) of the IRC.

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with professional standards, assets and liabilities measured and recorded at
fair value are required to be categorized into a three-level hierarchy based on the priority of
the inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair value.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurements

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3). If the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement fall within
different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Assets and liabilities measured and recorded at
fair value by the Organizations are categorized as follows;

Level 1 - Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that an entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these
instruments are, estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically
based on an entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There have been no
changes in valuation methodology used at June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Change in Accounting Principles

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued new guidance that created Topic
606, Revenue from Contracts w/ff) Customers, in the Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC). Topic 606 supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in FASB ASC 605,
Revenue Recognition, and requires the recognition of revenue when promised goods or
services are transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which

an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Organizations
adopted the requirements of the new guidance as of July 1, 2018, utilizing the full
retrospective method of transition. There was no material impact on the Organizations'
financial position and results of operations upon adoption of the new standard.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Change in Accounting Principles (Continued)

Additionally, in June 2018, FASB issued Accounting Standards (ASU) 2018-08, Accounting
Guidance for Contributions Received and Made. This ASU was issued to clarify accounting
guidance for contributions received and contributions made. The amendments to this ASU
assists entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as
contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of Topic 958, Not'for-Profit
Entities, or as an exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other guidance and
(2) determining whether a contribution is conditional. These consolidated financial
statements reflect the application of ASU 2018-08 beginning July 1, 2018. There was no
material impact on the Organizations' financial position and results of operations upon
adoption of the new standard.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases, which is a comprehensive
lease accounting standard that requires entities that lease assets (lessees) to recognize the
assets and related liabilities for the rights and obligations created by the leases on the
balance sheet for leases with terms exceeding 12 months. The lessee in a lease will be
required to initially measure the right-of-use asset and the lease liability at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, as well as capitalize initial direct costs as part of the right-
of-use asset. The FASB Issued ASU 2020-05, which deferred the effective date for the
Organizations until annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021, however, early
application is permitted. The Organizations are currently evaluating the impact this guidance
will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Reclasslfications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements to maintain consistency between periods
presented. The reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net assets.

Subseguent Events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Organizations have evaluated
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through December 22, 2020,
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Partv

The Organizations record beneficial interest in assets that are held by Ascentria in the
amount of $841,000 and $977,537 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. For the years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Organizations had a loan payable, included in accrued
expenses, to the fund totaling $340,524 and $340,524, respectively. Contributed assets are
transferred to Ascentria by either the donor or the Organizations with the approval of
Ascentria. The donors did not grant variance power to Ascentria.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organizations have entered into the follow/ing transactions with related parties;

•  The Organizations are charged annually by Ascentria for accounting, management
services, and overhead in monthly installments. Charges to operations for these
services totaled approximately $5,321,947 and $4,928,088 for the years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. These expenses have been included on the
statement of activities under the caption Management Fees. In addition, Ascentria is
the central contracting entity for insurance coverage, and insurance costs are then
billed monthly to the Organizations.

•  In connection with soliciting and managing donations received, Ascentria charged
the Organizations a custodial fee. The custodial fee charged to operations was
$12,994 and $6,009 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

•  The Organizations have various office space rentals to and from related parties and
vehicle rentals from related parties. Rental revenue from related parties amounted to
$137,545 and $119,254 for the years ended June 30. 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Office space and vehicle related party rents amounted to $391,487 and $4^,395 for
the year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

•  Related party loans that bear no interest and have no fixed repayment terms, are
as follows:

2020 2019

Due from Related Parties:

Lutheran Housing Corporation Brockton, Inc.
Emanuel Development Corporation

Total

Due to Related Parties:

Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc.

Total

$ 5,632 $ 5,632

149 149

$ 5.781 5 5.781

2020 2019

$ 3,610,245 $ 2,802,397

$ 3.610,245 2.802.397

NOTE 4 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The Organizations participate in a defined contribution thrift plan (the thrift plan) qualifying
under IRC Section 403(b) maintained by Ascentria. The thrift plan permits discretionary
employer contributions based on a specified percentage of annual compensation and
employee contributions. The Organizations had no pension costs charged to operations or
contributions to the plan during the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable balance consisted of the following at June 30:

2020

Accounts Receivable - Program Services
Less; Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts Receivable, Net

$  4,663,528

(44.549)

2019

$  3,896,798

(28,218)

$  4.618.979 $ 3.868.580

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organizations to concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations, maintain cash and cash equivalent balances in several federally insured
financial institutions in the same geographic area as well as a money market fund. During
the year, there may be times when uninsured cash is significantly higher and exceeds
federally Insured limits.

Major Customer

The Organizations receive significant funding from various federal and state agencies. The
states, through which funding was received, include Massachusetts, New Hampshire, and.
Maine. Approximately 84% of the Organizations' revenue was received from state and
federal agencies directly or via pass through for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Due from Related Parties

The Organizations extend unsecured credit to related parties. The balance due from related
parties totaled $5,781 at June 30, 2020.

Beneficial lnterest in Net Assets of Related Party

The Organizations' unsecured gifts, held by a related party, amounted to $841,000 at
June 30, 2020.

Accounts Receivable. Net

The Organizations extend unsecured credit to its customers. Accounts receivable amounted
to $4,618,979 at June 30. 2020.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The useful lives of property and equipment for purposes of computing depreciation are:

Building, Building Improvements, and Leasehold Improvements 5 to 40 Years
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures, and Vehicles 3 tolO Years
Equipment Under Capital Lease 3 to 5 Years
Computer Equipment and Software 3 Years

Depreciation and amortization (including amortization of equipment under capital lease)
expense charged to operations was $131,307 and $97,738 for the years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019, respectively.

NOTE 8 MAINE MEDICAID LIABILITY

ACS provides services for Medicaid eligible individuals under terms of costs based contracts
with the state of Maine. Accordingly, ACS provides for the estimated amount of settlements
with Medicaid as a liability. Final reimbursement is not determined until the state of Maine
accepts the cost report. The amount of the estimated liability was approximately $496,000
and $62,000 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Adjustments to
these estimates are reflected on the consolidated statement of activities under the caption
grant and contract revenue to the extent not previously recorded in the year the final
settlement information becomes available to management.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT

The Organizations are liable on long-term debt at June 30, 2020 and 2019 as follows:

Description Amount 2019

Note Payable

Term note payable to Bank of America face amount

$350,000, due August 7, 2033, secured by business
assets, payable in monthly installments of interest
only through August 2008 then monthly payments of
principal plus interest through maturity. Interest rate
is fixed at .7.105% annually. $ 183,082 $ 199,377

Mortgage payable to Bank of America face amount
$370,308, secured by real property owned by ACS at
two locations, and guaranteed by Ascentria, with an
interest rate of 7.01%, due August 2032. Monthly
principal and interest payments of $2,670. 258,306 271,355

Capital Lease Obligations

ACS is obligated under various capital lease agreements
for equipment and motor vehicles, expiring in 2020, with
a combined monthly payment of approximately $2,200

1,146 14,902

Total Long-Term Debt 442,534 485,634

Less: Current Maturities (32,752) (43,100)

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities 409.782 $ 442.534

Following are current maturities for the next five years:

Year Endina June 30. Amount

2021 $ 32,752

2022 33,944

2023 36,454

2024 39,087

2025 42,403

Thereafter 257,894

Total $ 442.534

Interest charged to operations for the above long-term debt amounted to $32,965 and
$34,677 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 10 OPERATING LEASES

The Organizations lease land, buildings, equipment, and motor vehicles under various
operating lease agreements \with terms of 1 to 3 years. Total rent and related expenses
amounted to $1,099,443 and $1,056,543 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under these agreements are as follows:

Year Ending June 30.

2021

2022

2023

Total

Amount

$ 517,288

257,120

245,505

1.019.913

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES

A significant portion of the Organizations' net revenues and accounts receivable are derived
from services reimbursable under Medicaid programs. There are numerous health care
reform proposals being considered on federal and state levels. The Organizations cannot
predict at this time whether any of these proposals will be adopted or, if adopted and
implemented, what effect such proposals would have on the Organizations.

A significant portion of the Organizations' revenues are derived from services reimbursable
under Medicaid programs. The base year costs utilized in calculating the Medicaid rates are
subject to audit which could result in a retroactive rate adjustment for all years in which that
cost base was used in calculating the rates. It is not possible at this time to determine
whether the Organizations will be audited or if a retroactive rate adjustment would result.

ACS and Ascentria have entered into an equity sharing agreement related to four properties
transferred from Ascentria to the ACS on July 1, 2001. The agreement states that if the
properties are sold or leased to a third party, approximately 40% of the proceeds will
become payable to Ascentria. Such payment represents the excess of fair value of the
properties transferred over their net book value as of July 1, 2001. A significant portion of
the Organizations' revenues are derived from state and federal government funding. Due to
current economic conditions, it is possible that funding from these sources could be reduced
in the near term. The Organizations cannot determine at this time if funding levels will
change, or what financial impact, if any, potential changes would have on the Organizations.

The receivables of the Organizations are listed as collateral under the line of credit
agreement of Ascentria. The outstanding balance is $2,500,000 as of June 30, 2020 and
2019.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 12 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Organizations use fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain
assets and liabilities to determine fair value disclosures. For additional information on how

the Organizations measure fair value refer to Note 1 - Organization and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.

The following tables present the Organizations' fair value hierarchy for those assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2020 and 2019:

2020

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party:
Total

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party:
Total

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$ 841,000 $ $ $ 841,000

841.000 ? ■

- 841.000

2019

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

$ 977,537 $ $ $ 977,537

977.537 $ -  $ - 977.537

The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value of the Organizations'
Level 3 financial assets for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Balance - July 1, 20.18
Income, Net of Releases

Balance - July 1, 2019
Income, Net of Releases

Balance - July 1, 2020

$  1,198,086

(220,549)

977,537

(136,537)

$  841.000

Since these funds are held by a third party that pools the Organizations' interest with other
related organization's assets, management has determined that the inputs are unobservable
and therefore, valued using a Level 3 methodology.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 13 AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Organizations regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
commitments. For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures
over a 12-month period, the Organizations consider all expenditures related to its ongoing
program activities as well as the services undertaken to support those activities to be
general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12

months, the Organizations operate a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources. The
Organizations consider the following to be available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures:

2020 2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net

Total Financial Assets

Donor-Imposed Restrictions
Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year

$  1,088,674 $

4,618,979 3,868,580

5,707,653 3,868,580

(84,844) (84,842)

$  5.622.809 $  3.783.738

NOTE 14 ASSETS TRANSFERS

On June 26, 2019, Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (ACS), and Good News Garage -
LSS, Inc. (GNG) combined their operations. The Organizations provide community services
programs and were combined to further their common mission by improving their community
services programs and achieving economies of scale and other synergies through
integration of services. As a result of the combination, the surviving organization is ACS.

The Organizations followed the guidance related to transactions between entities under
common control to record the transition as Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc. (ACA) is the sole
corporate member of both entities. As a result of this transaction, the net assets of the
transferring organization will be accounted for at the carrying amount as of the beginning of
the reporting period in which the transfer occurs. Therefore, effective July 1, 2018, the
carrying amount of net assets of GNG were transferred to ACS. As of July 1, 2018, the
following was the respective carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, and net assets
transferred:

Total Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Liabilities

824,075

42,309

307,808

Total Net Assets

Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

516,267

29,814

486,453
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE 15 COVID-19 IMPACT

In 2020, the World Health Organization declared the spread of Coronavirus {COVID-19) a
worldwide pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic is having significant effects on global
markets, supply chains, businesses, and communities. In response to the pandemic and in
an effort to supplement lost revenues and support increased costs incurred to secure
personal protective equipment, the federal and state governments issued stimulus payments
to the Organizations. See Note 1 for Information on funding received by the Organizations in
2020.

COVID-19 may also impact various parts of the Organizations' 2021 operations and
financial results including but not limited to additional costs for emergency preparedness,
disease control and containment, potential shortages of health care personnel, or loss of
revenue due to reductions In certain revenue streams. Management believes that the
Organizations are taking appropriate actions to mitigate the negative impact. However, the
full impact of COVID-19 is unknown and cannot be reasonably estimated as of June 30,
2020.
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Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

FY2021 Board and Committee Membership

Board of Directors & Corporate Officers

William Mayo (Chair) Rev. Ross Goodman (Vice Chair)

Karen Gaylin (Secretary) Garth Greimann (Financial Secretary)

Angela Bovill (Ex-Officio w/Vote) Scott Hamilton

Frederick Jenoure Stacey Luster, JD

Sherri Pitcher Keith Robertson

Barbara Ruhe Kimberly Salmon

Peter Schmidt

Angela Bovill (President) Jeanette Wade (EVP)

Jeff Kinney (EVP) Nicholas Russo (Treasurer)

Tara Browne (Clerk)

Last Updated; Monday, September 9, 2019Monday, March 29, 2021
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ALEN OMERBEGOVIC

EXPERIENCE: February, 2001-Present Ascentria Care Alliance Manchester, NH
Business Development and Customer Services Manager
Contacting current and potential clients to establish rapport and airange meetings to promote
new services and to improve customer satisfaction. Participating in development of new
marketing initiatives and ideas. Researching organizations and individuals to find new
opportunities and develop new products, Handle customer issues and contract negotiations.
Language Bank Program Manager
Coordinate and manage all day-to-day aspects of interpretation services for people with limited
English proficiency. Create awareness of services available thru Language Bank to medical, legal
and other fecilities in New Hampshire. Recruit and manage staff interpreters in a variety of
languages.
Job Developer
Provided case management to assist clients in overcoming barriers to employment leading to
long-term career placement. Assessed client needs and advised clients on career options,
developed goals and time lines for achievement of goals. Developed and implemented
training programs to enhance client employability. Planned, directed and supervised
Employment Services activities for newly arrived refugees, and low-income clients
Educational Case Worker

Providing help to children in school, teachers and parents to communicate to each other and
working as support for educational liaison.
Health Advocate/Interpreter
Acted as translator and advocate in healthcare and social service settings; Provided health
orientation; Maintained strict confidentiality; Providing referral services for refugee clients
and follow up their appointments needs
Case Aid-Part Time

Transported clients to and from medical and social service appointments. Provided
interpretation for clients/caseworkers from Serb-Croat and translated documents.

I999-200I MacNciU World Wide Laconia, NH
Machine Operator/Machine Tech
Assembly of various electrical parts on machinery; Sorting of cleats; Fixed, maintained and
troubleshooter for machines; Knowledge of setting up molds and ability to start new job on
production line.

1997-1997 Organization for Security and Co-operation Bosnia
Translator

Provided translation assistance for this independent company during elections in Bosnia;
Assisted in problem resolution.

1996-1997 Brown and Root Service Company Bosnia
Food Service Supervisor/Translator
Supervised fifty-two men in large kitchen providing food service to United States Army
soldiers stationed in Bosnia; Translated for staff and superiors.

CAPABILITIES: Fluent in Bosnian and English. Basic knowledge of Russian and Dutch.
Good knowledge of the computer operating systems: Word, Works, Power Point and Access
Ability to be a team player as well as work independently

EDUCATION: High School Diploma
Concentration in Computer Science Zvornik, Bosnia

Certificate - Southern NH Area Health Education Center

The An of Medical Interpretation Training Manchester, NH
Legal Interpretation Manchester, NH

CultureSmart-Medical Interpretation Trainer Boston, MA
Train the Trainer-"Essential Piece of Medical Interpreting
GED - Manchester School of Technology Manchester, NH
Southern New Hampshire University Manchester, NH

B.S. Justice Studies
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AB

ALEXANDRA BAER

PROFESSIONAL Nationally Certified Medical interpreter with 19 + years of experience assisting

SUMMARY limited English proficient (LEP) individuals. Conducts consecutive and
simultaneous interpreting in both medical and legal fields. This includes advanced

and complex vocabulary, idiomatic and cultural understanding with up-to-date

knowledge, maintaining the emotion, style and content of the speaker's message.

Training, curriculum development and mentoring experience for over 27 years and up to date on
the necessary skills of the profession, ethics and pedagogy. Active presenter in a numerous of

national and international interpreting conferences for the past 10 years.

SKILLS & ABILITIES Superior writing and reading skills in both Spanish and Portuguese languages.

Uses both consecutive and simultaneous modes interchangeably as needed.

Advanced research skills and strong communication skills as a trainer. Competent

in technology, organization and adaptability skills. An enthusiastic trainer/

presenter.

EXPERIENCE TRAINING/QUALITY ASSURANCE MANAGER - THE LANGUAGE BANK, ASCENTRIA

Sop 2018 to Current

•  Leads trainings and manages training calendar for the entire fiscal year,

including setting course plans and trainings spaces.

•  Conducts tailored/specific training programs to help employees improve

their skills

•  Conducts trainings for judges, state courts and medical institutions on

best practices when working with interpreters

•  Developed first in-house Court/Legal training course for the agency

•  Reviews and keeps training curriculum for legal/medical courses up to

date

•  Reviews customer interactions with interpreters and activity reports to

identify and address concerns

•  Creates standards and policies for Language Bank training department

•  Works with other managers to implement company's policies and goals

related to training and hiring of interpreters

SPANISH/PORTUGUESE INTERPRETER - THE LANGUAGE BANK. ASCENTRIA

Sep 2006 to Current

•  Delivers consecutive and simultaneous interpretation for LEPs

•  Interprets in both medical institutions and courts.
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SPANINSH/PORTUGUESE INTERPRETER - EUROTEXT TRANSLATIONS ROSETTA STONE

May 2001 to 2006

•  Delivered consecutive and simultaneous interpretation for LEPs in a

variety of settings.

•  Interpreted in both medical institutions and courts.

•  Completed Transcription-Translation work for law enforcement agencies

•  Delivers consecutive and simultaneous interpretation for LEPs

•  Interprets in both medical institutions and courts.

EDUCATION NATIONAL BOARD OF CERTIFICATION FOR MEDICAL INTERPRETERS (NBCMl)

0ct201i

Certified Medical Interpreter (CMI-Spanish)

CULTURE SMART THE ESSENTIAL PIECE - MEDICAL INTERPRETATION TRAINING

0ct2011

Certification of Lead Trainer

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE AHEC - LEGAL & MEDICAL INTERPRETATION TRAINING

May 2.007 and May 2008

Certificate of completion

UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS - MASTER EQUIVALENT OF MUSIC THERAPY

May 1997

UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS - MASTER OF MUSIC (MM)

Dec 1992

PRESENTATIONS • Presented at several IMIA Conferences (International Medical Interpreters

Association):

Apr 2016 International Congress, Boston, MA

Apr 2015 International Congress, Rockville, MD

Ian 2013 National Conference, Miami Beach, FL

Oct2011 National Conference, Boston, MA

•  Presented at several Paving the Way to Health Care Access:

jun 2016 Conference, Marlborough, MA

|im 2013 Conference, Marlborough, MA

•  Presented for the NCSC (National Consortium of State Courts)

Dec 2012; Apr 2013; Feb 2014; Aug2017, Concord, NH

•  Presented at 2011 NH Medical Society Conference, Bedford, NH

Scp 2011

•  Presented at NAjlT (National Association of Judiciary Interpreters and Translators)

May 2009, Scottsdale, AZ

•  Presented at CFI (California Federation of Interpictcrs)

Oct 2009, San Francisco, CA

REFERENCES References are available upon request

Page 2
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Jannick F. Hebert

Job Objective

Fulfill an Administrative position of employment in an organization to obtain quality skills and
professional experience, while making a difference in the community and fmding new
challenges.

Skills and Technical Experience

Great Plains Software , Microsoft Office 365 and suite 2010

Bilingual; English and French

Fax, copier, scanner, computer, multi-line business telephone system

Extensive knowledge of Interpreters and Providers

Work History

Ascentria Care Alliance February 24, 2014- 2019
340 Granite St. Manchester NH 03102 ™: (603)410-6183
Position: Client Service Coordinator

Responsible for assisting with the daily operations of Language Bank, a non-profit which helps
people with limited English proficiencies access services such as health care, the courts, public
education, and social services. Responsible for clerical duties, scheduling interpreters, responding
to e-mails and telephone calls, and providing excellent communication in a team-based, customer
service-focused environment.

Ascentria Care Alliance 2019 to Present
340 Granite St. ManchesterNH 03102 Tel (603)410-6163
Position: Quality Assurance Coordinator
Responsible for assisting with the daily operations of Language Bank to ensure that all
appointment verification documentation is thorough, accurate and timely. Assist with accurate
completion of payroll and assure that the business software accurately supports the needs of the
program. Work with software developer to maintain payroll compliance.

Harvey Building Products April 2013 to October 2013
30 Jacks Bridge Rd Londonderry, NH'03053 Tel: (800) 562-6237
Positions: assembler/saw operator
Duties included cutting material according to daily schedules, processing, welding and cleaning
the cut material into frames for future needs.

Fiberkraft Inc. March 2010 to April 2013
14 Tinker Ave. Londonderry, NH 03053 Tel: (800) 258-1063
Positions: Customer Service, Product Specialist, Sales Representative, Assembly and Production,
Warehouse and Shipping

Duties included handling any customer request, processing orders, maintaining data and filling
has well has any other needed work around the office and occasionally outside the office.
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Education and Certifications

National Career Readiness Certificate, Gold Certificate# K.SNF02S06QW7 — Nov. 2013
S.N.H.U., International Business Management Bachelors - Taking Time Off
Hesser College, Medical Assistant Diploma - Oct. 2008
Manchester West High School - 2 years of general studies & GED
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Radia Sefiane

Objective; To secure a position within a service environment where I may utilize my education
languages, office management and case management experience, as well as
community out reach skills and social services.

Qualifications:

More than 14 years of Community Outreach, concentration on Minority
Population
Office management
Experience in teaching foreign language

OverlO years of social work experience.
Excellent communication and problem solving abilities.
Compassionate, mature and professional individual.
Good computer skills including Microsoft office.
Multi-lingual in French, Arabic, Algerian, and Greek.
Provided post resettlement and referral services for refugee clients.
Acted as both Interpreter and advocate in healthcare and social service settings.
Provided cultural orientation and staff training

Produced contractual reports in a timely and efficient manner.
Developed organizational systems to ensure the delivery of services.
Maintained strict confidentiality with clients.

Relevant Professional Experience:
Service Manager-/I Care Alliance
Language Bank, Manchester NH 20J8- present
Handling complaints and queries (from customers and staff).Maintains customer satisfaction by
providing problem-solving resources; managing staff, recruiting, onboarding new hires, training,
assigning, scheduling, coaching, counseling, and disciplining employees; communicating job
expectations; planning, monitoring, appraising, and reviewing job contributions; enforcing policies
and procedures. Handling payroll and billing. Overseeing Field and office staff.

Assistant Program Manager, Ascentria Care Alliance
Language Bank, Concord NH 2011-2017
Design and implement office policies, establish standards and procedures, organize office
operations and procedure, prepare time sheets, payroll, and billing and maintain office equipment
and supervise field and office staff.

Medical Case Manager, Ascentria Care Alliance
Refugee Program, Concord, NH 02/01/2004-2010
Schedule and coordinate all medical appointments for SNA refugees. Providing inteipretation and
transportation. Provide education about preventive care and health care system to refugees.
Provide 24-hour on-call care for emergency evaluations.

Foreign Language Teacher, Strajford School
Elementary/Middle School, Strafford, 2006-2007
Taught French and Spanish to Elementary and Middle School children during the school year.
This involves preparing, presenting, and evaluating the lessons. The ages range from seven to
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fourteen years old. Each class consists of between eighteen to twenty four children. In addition to
State and Federal oversight, parents are quite involved in the curricula.

Minority Outreach Coordinator Elliot Hospital
Breast and Cenncal Cancer Program, 2002 -2008
Developed, initiated, presented and evaluated programs designed to reach the minority population
in Manchester for the purpose of educating women about the importance of preventive care and
early detection regarding breast and cervical health.Commendation: Was recognized for
"outstanding work supporting the cause for breast cancer awareness in the Greater Manchester
area" in 2006 and community outreach by Minority Health Coalition, Manchester Community
Resource.

Social Worker and Case Manager, Betraria Hospital
Algiers, Algeria- 1993- 1995
Coordinated, implemented and managed activities for terminally ill children including, providing
social work services, counseling families, collecting assistance in clothing and food, writing
reports, supervising four caseworkers, and performing case review and team meetings.

Youth Caseworker (volunteer), Red Crescent/Red Cross
Algiers, Algeria- 1992-1994
Organizing youth activities for terminally ill children, including social events and physical
activities, coordinating and distributing donations of clothes, toys and books, arid providing
friendship and companionship to the children.

Other Experience:
Swing Manager, McDonald's Restaurant.
Manchester. NH- 2001- 2002

Responsible for supervision of staff, opening store, balancing and checking drawers, making bank
deposits, serving patrons, and providing customer service.

Professional Basketball Player Kefa Lovresos Women '.9 Team
Lamaca, Cyprus- 1995- 1996
Played professional basketball against other professional teams.

Coach For basketball team, Kefa Lovresos Girl's teams
Larnaca Cyprus -1997-1999
Teaching basketball to girls between the age 12-14 and 18and up

French Teacher, Private French lessons
Larnaca Cyprus -1996-2000
Teaching French language to kids between the age 10-16

Education:

Certificate of Completion
Keyboarding, Fundamentals of Computer and Word I and 11
Keeping Software Simple, Manchester, NH- 2000

B.A. in Sociology
Institute of Sociology, Algiers, Algeria- 1994

High School Diploma

Omar Racin Secondaty School, Algiers, Algeria- 1991

Languages: Fluent in French, Arabic, Algerian, and Greek
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Patricia M. Gerbert

QUALIFICATIONS

•  Excellent Communication Skills, both written and verbal

•  Excellent in Multi-Tasking in high stress environments. .
•  Detail Oriented and Well Organized, Highly Motivated, Energetic, and Enthusiastic
•  Computer Applications: Microsoft applications such as Word, Excel, Power Point, Access, Publisher,

OutLook; Work Stream, Tempo, Oracle, as well as other MRP type applications.
•  Lean Manufacturing, including 5S training

PROFESSIONAL BACKGROUND:

Ascentria Care Alliance; Call Center Manager Manchester, NH; 2013 to Present
L-3 Insight Technology; Clean Room Supervisor Londonderry, NH, 2010 to 2012
Allegro Microsystems; Production Supervisor; Manchester, NH, 2002 to 2009
Rockwell Automation; Group Leader / Electronic Rework Technician; Manchester, NH, 1995 to 2002 ̂

RESPONSIBILITIES:

Perform eligibility checks for Medicaid / MCO consumers
Compile billing report to reflect appointment rates, travel time, and mileage for customer
Coordinate interpreter expense receipts so they are reimbursed for money spent
Overseeing, approving, and submitting employee time
Working with foreign language and American Sign Language interpreters
Assist and Communicate with customers on any questions or concerns they may have
Connect customers to the company scheduling database
Schedule interpreters for appointments
Perform daily audits to verify high quality of product output, as well as verifying that all procedures and
policies are being followed

Responsible for prioritizing production floor schedules and personnel to ensure high quality and output
of product based on customer needs and requirements.
Interview and hire potential reports, discipline when needed
Shift training and certifying of employees on all assembly and testing equipment.
Assisted in creating standardized training workbook to create uniform program training for employees
Motive and encourage personnel but discipline up to termination process if necessary
Trained personnel on equipment used for assembly and testing with-in the facility.
Responsible for inventory control of product lines within the department
Testing and troubleshooting circuit boards.
Implemented quality rework program to fulfill corrective actions to insure high quality
Responsible for employee time sheets and attendance records.
Maintained daily and monthly reports of quality and productivity.
Perform any operations that may be needed, such as running equipment during short staffing

EDUCATION:

Business Degree in process at Southern New Hampshire University
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Alen Omerbegovic Business Dev. & Customer

Serv. Manager

$75,525 33% $24,546

Radia Sefiane Service Manager $60,466 23% $13,605

Patricia Gerbert Call Center Manager $50,315 25% $12,579

Jarmick Herbert Quality Assurance
Coordinator

$48,069 20% $9,614

Alexandra Baer Training & Quality Assurance
Manager

$54,330 20% 10,866



JcfTrey A. Meyen
CommlMioner

8- ^
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

/

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9389 I-800-852-3345 Ext 9389

Fax:603-271-4332 tOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

March 13,2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a renewal option to an
agreement with Ascentria Community Services. Inc. (Vendor #161459), 14 East Worcester Street.
Suite 300, Worcester, Massachusetts., to continue to provide communication access services,
statewide, by increasing the amount by $1,385,969 from $2,517,722 to $3,903,691, and extending
the contract completion date from June 30. 2019 to June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. 50%Federal Funds / 50% General Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 24;
2015 (Item #34). and subsequently amended on June 21, 2017 (Item #19).

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval from
the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95^5-4500010-6127000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, EMPLOYMENT
SUPPORT

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Current

Budget

increase/

(Decrease)

New Modified

Budget

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $628,861 $0 $628,861

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $628,861 $0 $628,861

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $630,000 $0 $630,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $630,000 $0 $630,000

Subtotal $2,517,722 $0 $2,517,722

05-95-42-422010-7921000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

New Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $0 $692,984.50 $692,984.50

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $0 $692,984.50 $692,984.50

Subtotal $0 $1,385,969 $1,385,969

Grand Totals $2,617,722 $1,385,969 $3,903,691



EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to renew an agreement that provides statewide Communication
Access Services to assure meaningful access to all persons who do business with the Department
who need language and communication assistance, including individuals who may not speak English,
have limited English proficiency, or who are deaf or who have hearing loss. Communication Access
Services ensure that the Department will be in compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.
Additionally, State law {RSA 521-A and RSA 354-A) requires that an interpreter be provided, when
necessary, to ensure effective communication for individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss.

The Contractor will continue to provide interpretation and translation, services in multiple
locations to current and potential customers of the Department, including the public who attend
Department-sponsored public forums, or who receive Department public broadcasts or emergency
communications. The Contractor will continue to provide services that include: spoken language
interpretation, American Sign Language. Certified Deaf Interpreters, Oral Interpreters. Deaf-Blind
Tactile Interpreters, Cued Speech Interpreters and Communication Access Real-Time Service. These
services ensure a uniform and comprehensive approach for alt individuals to experience meaningful
access to Department information, programs and services.

The original contract includes language in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to General Provisions.
Paragraph 4. that reserves the Department's right to renew the agreement for up to four (4) additional
years subject to continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services, agreement by
the parties, and approval by the Governor and Executive Council. Amendment #1 exercised two (2)
of the available four (4) years of renewal. The Department requests approval to exercise the
remaining two (2) of the four (4) available years of renewal.

The Contractor is providing services that are understandable and respectful, in a. responsive
manner, for individuals with diverse cultural health beliefs and practices, in their preferred language,
with preferred interpreters. The Contractor consistently responds to urgent needs for communication
access across the Department, and actively collaborates with the Department to ensure forms and
documents received in languages other than English are translated in a timely manner..

The following performance measures/objectives will k>e used to measure the effectiveness of
the amendment agreement:

•  Individuals served feel their communication access needs were met as evidenced by
85% of responses reporting satisfaction.

•  DHHS staff feel they are able to appropriajely serve individuals with communication
access needs as evidenced by 85% of DHHS staff survey returned responses
reporting that the contractor appropriately delivered services.

•  DHHS staff have the translated written materials they need in order to serve clients
effectively as evidenced by translation requests being fulfilled within 14 calendar days
at least 90% of the time.

• Communication Access service capacity is consistently maintained as evidenced by
100% of DHHS' submitted interpretation/communication access requests are fulfilled,
or a mutually agreeable alternative is provided by the selected vendor.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, communication access
sen/ices may be unavailable to individuals most in need of Department services who may not speak
English, have limited English proficiency, are deaf or have hearing loss. Further, individuals may not
be able to access valuable information available through public forums, conferences and/or events
sponsored by the Department. Lastly, emergency communication bulletins may not reach those most
in need of the emergency alerts. Lack of communication access services violates federal civil rights
laws, which require that communication assistance be provided for individuals who need it.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 50% Federal Funds, and 50% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

incerely.

Mey rers

imissioner

The Ocpiirlmenl of lleoUh and Human Scroices' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communication Access Services

Amendment Wl

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the

Communication Access Services Contract

This 2™" Amendment to the Communication Access Services Contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #2") dated this 20"^ day of February. 2019, is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Ascentria Community Services, Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor" or "Ascentria"). a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 14 East
Worcester St., Suite 300, Worcester. MA 01604.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June .24, 2015 (Item #34) and as amended on June 21. 2017 (Item # 19).
the Contractor agreed to . perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
General Provisions. Paragraph 4. the State may modify the Contract by written agreement of
the parties and renew services for up to four (4) years subject to the continued availability of
funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and to increase the price
limitation to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

$3,903,691.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8 Price Limitation, to read:

June 30. 2021.

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9 Contracting Officer for the State to read:

Nathan 0. White. Director.

4. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number to read:

(603) 271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit B Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment in its
entirety and replace with: Exhibit B Amendment #2. Methods and Conditions Precedent
to Payment.'

6. Add Exhibit B-9 Budget - Amendment #2, Spoken Language Interpretation and
Translation Services.

7. Add Exhibit B-10 Budget - Amendment #2. ASL, CART and Other Services for
Individuals with Deafness and Hearing Loss.

AjcenWa Community Sflfvtoea, Inc Amendment #2
te-DHHS-OHS-OMHRA-OI Page 1 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communication Access Services

Amendment #2

8. Add Exhibit B11 Budget - Amendment #2, Spoken l,3nguage Interpretation and
Translation Services.

9. Add Exhibit B-12 Budget - Amendment #2 ASL, CART and Other Services for
Individuals with Deafness and Hearing Loss.

10. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Ascentria Conimunlty Services. Inc Amendment S2
IS-DHHS-OHSOMHRA^I Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communication Access Services

Amendment

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

y>/\7'h'^
Date

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

hhe:
Title: Q\<rc<A-f-r^ oC-

Ascentrla Community Services, Inc.

Na 72vfitl

TIti
CC\>\

nX.

Acknowledgemerjt: .. jJ \i \ I I
State of n , County of TnitsWvoo^L on Jl . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person IdeKtlfied above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity Indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

Aacentris Community Servlcos. Inc
\ 6-DHHS-OHS-OMHRA-01

Amendment #2

Pege i of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communication Access Services

Amendment

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office. Is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date
VName;

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Ascentrift Community Services. Inc
16-OHHS-OHS-OMHRA.01

Amendment 92

P&ge 1 ot 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communication Access Services

Exhibit B - Amendment #2

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The state shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8,
for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with general and federal funds. Department access to supporting
funding for this project is deperident upon the criteria set forth in the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) fhttDs://w>w.cfda.qov):

2.V #93.044 - Department of Heaith and Human Services, Administration for
Community Living A-Formula Grants. Older Americans Act

2.2. #93.659 - Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children and
Families. A- Formuia Grants. Adoption Opportunities

2.3. #93.658 - Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families. A- Formuia Grants. B-Project Grants. Foster Care

2.4. #93.563 - Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children and
Families. A- Formula Grants. Child Support Enforcement

2.5. #93.778 - Department of Health & Human Services. Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Senrices. A- Formula Grants, Medical Assistance Program

2.6. #93.667 - Department of Heaith & Human Services. Administration for Children and
Families. A- Formula Grants. Social Services Block Grant.

2.7. #93.767 - Department of Health & Human Services. Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services. A- Formula Grants, 8 - Project Grants; Children's Health
Insurance Program.

2.8. #93.558 - Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children and
Families; A- Formula Grants, L- Dissemination of Technical Information; Temporary
Assistance to Needy Families.

2.9. #10.561 - Department of Agriculture Food and Nutrition Service; A - Forrnula
Grants; State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program.

3. The Contractor shall use and apply all contract funds for allowable direct and indirect costs
to provide services in Exhibit A1 and Exhibit A2, in accordance with Exhibit B-5 —
Amendment#! through Exhibit B-12 Amendment#2.

4. The Contractor shall not use or apply contract funds for capital additions or improvements,
entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the Department.

5. Payment for said services shall be made as foliowrs:

5.1. • The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth (lO"*) working day of each month,
v/hich identifies and requests reimbursement for:

5.1.1. Authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

5.1.2. The units of services provided, in accordance with Exhibit A-1 and Exhibit
A-2 which shall be paid on a fee-for-service basis the rates specified in
Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1 through Exhibit B-12 Amendment #2.

Aicentrta Commurtty Services, Inc. Exhibit 8 - AmendmenH>2
16-DHHS-OH$-OMHRA.01 P8pe1ol2 Cootroclor iiMtlds.

DBtOi *2-



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communication Access Services

Exhibit B - Amendment 02

5.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

5.3. The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

Mary Calise. Senior Finance Director
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

E-mail: Mary.Calise@dhhs.nh.gov

6. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37.
General Provisions. Contract Completion Date. Block 1.7.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompllance with any,
State or Federal law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
sen/Ices have not been completed in accordance with the terrns and conditions of this
Agreement.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37. General Provisions, an amendment
limited to transfer the funds within the budgets in Exhibit B-4 - Amendment #1 through
Exhibit B-8 - Amendment #1 and .within the price limitation, can be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor
and Executive Council.

Asc«ntf1a Community Services. Inc. Exhibll B - Amendmeni #2
1S-OHHS-OHS-OMHRA-Oi Page 2 of 2 Contraclof Inlllats:

Date;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in.this document:

1. 'Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information,' Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NISI Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or 'Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and ail information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numt>ers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knov^edge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any network or segment of a network that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information' (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined v/ith other personal or identifying Information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protect^ Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subparl C, and amendments
thereto.

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACtOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not lirhited to all its directors,'offtcers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor rhust not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Last update 1Q/0W16 Exhibil K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 2 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and aljove those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Siharing Sites. End User may riot use file
hosting services, such as Dropbpx or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cehifted ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidentiai Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
t>e coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, othenvise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. ' The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ail electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, antl-spyware, and anti-mafware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Hurhan Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6  The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation vrith the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor vrill document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior.to destruction.

2. .Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the terrnination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless othenwse specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information coliected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5A«lup<l.l.i(V09/t8 Conlrsctorlnltlal,
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided isystems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of ah intemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum'
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system-access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department 8y5tem(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable-sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach. Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all-applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at hnps://www.nh.gov/doityvendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors;

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response, process. The Contractor will notify the State's. Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as norvduty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
blometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in'section iV.above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in hereip, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer;

" DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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Jeffrey A. Meyert
Commissiooer

Maureen Ryan
Asaociate

CoQuniesioDer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HEALTH EQ UITY

97 PLEASANT STREET CONCORD. NH 0330M857

603-27M9&e 1-$00^2.S346 Ext. 3986

Fax: 603-2714824 TOD Access: l->800'73S-2964 www.dbhs.Dh.gov

May 24. 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a renewal option
to an agreement with Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (Vendor #161459), 14 East
Worcester Street, Suite 300, Worcester, Massachusetts, to continue to provide communication
access services, statewide, by increasing the amount by $1,260,000 from $1,257,722 to
$2,517,722. and extending the contract completion date from June 30. 2017 to June 30, 2019
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 50%Federal Funds / 50% General
Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2018 and 2019 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority
to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further
approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-45-4500010-6127000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE.
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
New Modified

Budget

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc $549,651 $0 $549,651

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc $79,210 $0 $79,210

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc $549,651 $0 $549,651

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc $79,210 $0 $79,210

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc $0 $550,790 $550,790

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc $0 $79,210 $79,210

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc $0 $550,790 $550,790

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc $0 $79,210 $79,210

$1,257,722 $1;260,000 $2,517,722
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to renew an agreement that provides statewide
Communication Access Services to assure meaningful access to all persons who do business
with the Department who need language and communication assistance including individuals
who may not speak English, have limited English proficiency, who are deaf or who have
hearing loss. Communication Access Services ensure that the Department will be in
compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Additionally. State law (RSA 521-A
and RSA 354-A) requires that an interpreter be provided, when necessary, to ensure effective
communication for individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss.

The Vendor will continue providing interpretation and translation services in multiple
locations to current and potential customers of the Department, including the public who
attend Department-sponsored public forums or who receive Department public broadcasts and
emergency communications. The vendor will provide services that include spoken language
Interpretation, American Sign Language. Certified Deaf Interpreters. Oral Interpreters. Deaf-
Blind Tactile Interpreters. Cued Speech Interpreters and Communication Access Real-Time
Service in order to ensure a uniform and cornprehensive approach for all individuals to
experience meaningful access to Department information.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 24,
2015 (Item #34). The contract included language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions (Paragraph 4). that reserved the Department's right to renew the agreement for up
to four (4) additional years subject to continued availability of finds, satisfactory performance of
sen/ices and approval by the Governor and Executive Council. The Department requests
approval to renew communication access services for two (2) of the four (4) years available.

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. has provided services that are understandable and
respectful in a responsive manner to individuals with diverse cultural health beliefs' and
practices in their preferred language by preferred interpreters. The vendor has demonstrated
their ability to respond to urgent needs for communication access across the Department.
Further, the vendor has actively collaborated with the Department to ensure forms and
documents received in languages other than English are translated in a timely manner to
ensure continuity of services.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, communication
access services may be unavailable to individuals most in need of Department services who
may not speak English, have limited English proficiency, are deaf or have hearing loss.
Further, individuals may not be able to access valuable information available through public
forums, conferences and/or events sponsored by the Department. Lastly, emergency
communication bulletins may not reach those most in need of the emergency alerts. Lack of
communication access services violates federal civil rights laws, which require that
communication assistance be provided for individuals who need it.
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Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 50% General; 50% Federal

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Sincerely,

Maureen Ryan
Associate Cornhiissioner

0^—
Approved by; I ) '

J^rey A.rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families,
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampehlre Department of Health and Humon Services
CommunlcaUon Access Services
Amendment 01

State of Naw Hampshire
Department of Heaith and. Human Services

Amendment #1 to the

CommunlcatJon Access Services Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Communication Access Services CorUroct (hereinafter referred to ea
•Amendment 01-) dated this I** day of May. 2017, Is l)y and between the State of Now
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Dopartmenf) and Ascentrte Ccmmunily Services. Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as the
Contractor* or "Ascentria"). a riorvprofit corporaUon with a place of business at 14 East
Worcester SL. Suite 300. Worcester, MA 01604.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract^ approved by the Goverrwr and
ExecutKfe Councfl on June 24, 2015 (Item #34). the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of wortt,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Ejdrlbll 0-1, Revisions to
General Provistens, Paragraph 3, the State may modify the Contract by written agreement of
the partlee and renew services for up to four (4) years subject to the continued avaHablDty of
funds, satisfactory perfonnance of services and approval by the Governor and E«cutlve
Coundl; arte

WHEREAS the parties agree to extend the temi of the agreement. Increase the prica (Imitation,
and modify the scope of services to support continued deiivery of these senrtces; arte
NOW THEREFORE, h consWeration of the foregoing and the mutual covenanls and conditions
contained in the Comract and^ forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.7 CompleUon Dale, to read:

June 30.2019

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8 Price Urattatlon. toread:

$2,517,722

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9 Contracting OfHcer for the Stale to read: .

Jonathan. V. Gallo, Esq.. Interim Director of Contracts and ProcuremenL

3. Fofm P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number to read:

(603)271-9246.

4. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent lo Paymenl, and replace with Exhibit
B - Amendment #1. Method and Condlllons PrecedenI to Payment.

5. Add Exhibit B-5 - Amerxlment #1 Spoken language Interpretation.

6. Add Exhibit B-6 - Amerximeni #1 Hearing interpretalion.

7. Add Exhibit B-7 - Amendment #1 Spoken Language Interpretation.

8. Add Exhibit B-8 - Amerxlmenl #1 Hearing Interpretalion.

Aseentrls CorrvnurSy Scrvlctt. Inc.
AmencXnertlt

P#981 o<3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communication Access Services

Amendment 01

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

'1^1 n
Title: \

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.

Dale Name:ji^\fX«\^'-'=»
Tltler^.,r^f-U ts( unx |

Acknovi/ledgement:
Slate oiCYViA^j/'iLo>^\\'^ . County of />i on»^<^^U . before the
undersigned officer, "personally appeared the person Identified above/5r satisfactority proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document In the capacity indicated above.

Jusiite uf thy PyateubSignature of Nota

^  A a V^^UVv/ ̂
Name and Title of(^tary or Justie^f ttie Peace

My Commission Expires:

»
ALANA GEARY

Naary PuWiC
COV»K)tW(EAlTH 0< lUSSACHOSenS|

My Comrruasxyt Eipiret
XuquAJ, 20^6'

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.
Amendment ei
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New Hampshire Oepartmer\t of Health and Human Services
CominunlcatJon Access Services

Amendment 01 ,

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Ascentria Communiiy Services. Inc.
Amendment 11

Pa^e 3 dl 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communication Access Services

Exhibit B - Amendment ff1

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shatl pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.6,
for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with general and federal funds. Department access to supporting
funding for this project is dependent upon the criteria set forth in the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) fhttDs://www.cfda.qov):

2.1. #93.044 • Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for
Community Living A-Formula Grants, Older Americans Act

2.2. #93.659 - Deparlmeht of Hearth & Human Services. Administration for Children and
Families. A- Formula Grants, Adoption Opportunities

2.3. #93.658 - Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children and
Families. A- Formula Grants. B-Project Grants, Foster Care

2.4. #93.563 • Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families. A- Formula Grants. Child Support Enforcement

2.5. #93.778 - Department of Health & Human Services, Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services. A- Formula Grants. Medical Assistance Program

2.6. #93.667 - Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families. A- Formula Grants, Social Services Block Grant.

2.7. #93.767 - Department of Health & Human Services, Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services. A- Formula Grants. B - Project Grants; Children's Hearth
Insurance Program.

2.8.^ #93.558 - Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children and
Families; A- Formula Grants. L- Dissemination of Technical Information; Temporary
Assistance to Needy Families.

2.9. #10.561 - Department of Agricurture Food and Nutrition Service; A - Formula
Grants; State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program.

3. The Contractor shall use and apply all contract funds for allowable direct and indirect costs
to provide services in Exhibit A1 and Exhibit A2. in accordance with Exhibit B-5 -
Amendment #1 through Exhibit 8-8 - Amendment #1.

4. The Contractor shall not use or apply contract funds for capital additions or improvements,
entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the Department.

5. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

5.1. The Contractor will submit an Invoice by the tenth (10"*) working day of each month,
which identifies and requests reimbursement for:

5.1.1. Authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

5.1.2. The units of services provided, in accordance with Exhibit A1 and Exhibit A2"
which shall be paid on a fee-for-service basis the rates specified in Exhibit 8-
5 Amendment #1 through Exhibit B-8 - Amendment #4.

Ascentria Commurvty Servlcas. Inc.
Cxttibit B - Amendment * \

Pago 1 o( 2

Contreciof initials;.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communication Access Services

Exhibit 6 - Amendment

5.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

5.3. The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to;

Mary Calise, Senior Finance Director
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

E-mail:. Mary.C8lise@dhhs.nh.gov

6. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37.
General Provisions. Contract Completion Date. Block 1.7.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld. In whole or in part. In the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37. General Provisions, an amendment
limited to transfer the funds within the budgets in Exhibit 8-4 - Amendment #1 through
Exhibit B-8 - Amendment #1 and within the price limitation, can be made by written
agrieement of both parlies and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor
and Executive Council:

A*centr1a Commurtty Services. Inc.
ExnitXI 8 - Amndment«1
Page 2 of 2
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF MINORITYHEALTH & REFUGEE AFFAIRS

97 PLEASANT STREET CONCORD. NH 03301-3857
603-271-3986 I-800-692-3349 Eit. 3986

Pas^ 603-271-0824 TDDAcccm: I-600-735-S964 trww.dbba.Qb.goT

June 9, 2015

Her ExcellerKy. Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorabte Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter Into an agreement with
Ascentria Community Services. Inc. (Vendor #161459). 14 East Worcester Street, Suite 300,
Worcester, Massachusetts, to provide communication access services, statewide. In an amount not to
exceed $1,257,722. effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2017.
74%FederaI Funds / 26% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2016 and 2017 upon the availability
and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without further approval from
the Governor and Executive Council. If needed and justified.

05-9W5-4S00010-6127000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS. TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, EMPLOYMENT
SUPPORT

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Total Amount

SFY 2016 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc $549,651

SFY 2016 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc $79,210

SFY 2017 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc $549,651

SFY 2017 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $79,210

$1,257,722

EXPLANATION

This purpose of this request Is for the provision of statewide Communication Access Services to
assure meanin^ul access to ail persons who do business with the Department who may not speak
English, have Limited English Proficiency, who are Deaf or who have Hearing Loss. Communication
Access Services ensure that the Department will be In compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.
Additionally. State laws (RSA 521-A and RSA 354-A) require that an interpreter be provided, when
necessary, to ensure effective communication for Individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss.



Her Excellency. Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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The Vendor will provide spoken language interpretation and translation services to current and
potential customers of the department including the public who attend Department-sponsored public
forums and receive public broadcasts. Additionally, the vendor will provide services that include
American Sign Language, Certified Deaf Interpreters, Oral Interpreters, Deaf-Blind Tactile Interpreters,
Cued Speech Interpreters and Communication Access Real-Time Service in order to ensure a uniform
and comprehensive approach for individuals to experience meaningful access to Department
Information.

Services will be available In multiple locations and modalities to current arvd potential customers
of the Department as well as the public who attend Department-sponsored public forums and/or
receiving Department public broadcasts and emergency communications.

The Department published two Requests for Proposals seeking communication access
services. RFP 16-DHHS-OHS-OMHRA-01; DHHS Communication Access Services: Spoken
Language Interpretation and Translation Services, was published on February 6. 2015. One proposal
was received in response to the Request for Proposals. The proposal was evaluated and scored by
Individuals who represented Department-wide services. Ascenlria Community Services, Inc. was
selected as the vendor to provide spoken language interpretation and translation services. The bid
sheet is attached.

RFP 16-DHHS-OHS-bMHRA-02. DHHS Communication Access Services: ASL, CART and
Other Services for Individuals with Deafness and Hearing Loss, was published on February 6. 2015.
Two <2) proposals were received in response to the Request for Proposals. The proposals were
evaluated and scored by Individuals who represented Department-wide services. Ascentria Community
Senrices, Inc. was selected as the vendor to provide communication access services for the Deaf and
hard of hearing community. The bid sheet is attached.

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. will provide services that are understandable and respectful
in a responsive manner to individuals with diverse cultural health beliefs and practices in their preferred
language by preferred interpreters. The vendor has demonstrated their ability to respond to urgent
needs for communication access across the Department. Further, the vendor will collaborate with the
Department to ensure forms and documents received in languages other than English can be
translated in a timely manner to ensure continuity of services.

Because communication access services are accessed by Department employees, statewide,
renewal language in the contract Includes the option to renew services for up to four (4) years subject
to satisfactory provision of services, continued appropriation of funding and approval by the Governor
and Executive Council. •

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, communication access
services, vrill be unavailable to Individuals most in need of Department services who cannot speak
English, have limited English proficiency, are Deaf or have hearing loss. Further, individuals may not
be able to access valuable information available through public fooims, conferences and/or events
sponsored by the Department. Lastly, emergency communication bulletins may not reach those most
in need of the emergency alerts. Lack of communication access services In the Department would
result in some of our most vulnerable citizens becoming more vulnerable, which would negatively
impact the citizens in the State of New Hampshire. Most Importahtiy. lack of communication access
services violates Tederal civil rights \am that require that communication assistance be provided for
individuals vriio need it.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 26% General; 74% Federal
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Sincerely,

Mary Ann Cooney
Associate Commissioner

Approved by:
Iicnolas Toumdas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services'. Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opporlunilies for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Busirwss Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit
Summary Scoring Sheet

Spoken Language Interpretation and
Translation Service*

RFP Name

1.

2.

Bidder Name

Ascentrfa Community Services

0

ro_

A. «

5- a

6.

7.

1S^HHS-OHS-OMHRA41

RfP NumlMr Reviewer Names

Pass/Fall

Maximum

Points

Actual
Points

390 258

290 0

290 0

290 0

' 290 0

290 0

290 0

1.

2.

3.

A.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

Joan Marcoux. Program Specialist IV

Anaela Krusctca. Program Specialist III

Bart>ara SeebarL Program Specialist iV

Laura McGtashan. Program Specialist III

Det)orah Robinson. Aministrator ill

Jennifer Jones. Administrator II

Trinidad Tellez. System Spedaiist

PhHip J Nadeau. Administraior III

Mary Calise. Admlrastrator IV

Donria Walker, Administrator ill



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

ASL. CAPT end Other Communication

Acceaa Scfylcea
RFPNam*

Bidder Name

Aacentria Community Servicea

5.

6.

16-OHHS-OHS-OMHRA-02

Northeast Deaf ft Hard of Hearing Servicea. Inc.

3-0_

4. «

RFP Numt>er Reviewer Names

Pasc/Paii

Maximum

Pointa

' Actual

Points

290 24S

290 212

290 0

290 0

290 0

290 0

290 0

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

B.

9.

10.

Joan Marcoux. Proflram SpedaBst IV

Anaeia Kniscica. Program Specialist ill

Barbara Seebart. Program Specialist IV

Laura McGlashan. Program Specialist III

Deborah Robinson. Aministralor III

Jennifer Jor^, Administrator i

Trinidad Tellez. System Specialist

Philip J Nadeau, Administratof III

Mary Caiise. AdmirestratorlV

Donna Walker. Administrator I



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Communicai'ion Access Services

AGREEMENT

The State or New Hampshire artd the Contractor hereby muiualty agree as rollows;
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION^
1.1 State Agency Name

Department orHealih & Humart Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Contractor Name

Asceniria Community Services, inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

14 Cost Worcester Street. Suite 300
Worcester, MA 01604

15 Contractor Phone

Number

(774) 243-3900

1.6 Account Number

05-95-45-450010-61270000

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30.2017

1.8 Price Limitation

$1,257,722

1.9 Coatraetlng OfTker for Slate Agency

Eric 0. Borrin

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

{.13 Aclmowledgemcnt: StateoftVyV .Countyof ^

OnWjli^before the undersigned ofHccr, personally appeared the person idcntiricd in block 1.12. or satisfactorily proven to be the
personwhose name is signed in block I.I I, and acknowledged that sO* executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

I.I3.I Signature of Notary Public of dujflie uf the PFuie

(Seal!

1.13.2 Name and TlUe of Notary or Justice ofWe Peace

ALANA GEARY
\:v.vv 'jOfcc _

y wksaacHAcni

v> Comrriisron Espirts

1.14 State Agency Signature MS Namr and Title of State Agency Signatory

)Jtc}v>\oiSPv loOeApoA Cimf>n5&»
w ̂  y ' V -rw NJN. t \ ■ -w — I —y. « —

Tli 'Approval by the N.H. Department of AdminH^rallon. Division of Personnel 0/applicable) *

By: V..^ Director, On:

'•17 Aporavalby the Attorney General (Form. Substance and Exeeutlon)

B. U
1.18 Approval by theC^A^or and

By:

N'a
Cxeoative Coaiwi

On: \fl\o

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The SuieofNcw Hampshire, aciing
through the agency identiHcdio block I.I ("Siate"), engages
cofWrocior identified In block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform.
ar)d the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described In the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject (o the approval of (he Governor and
£*ecuiive Council of the Sute of New Hampshire, this
Agrccrnem. and all obligaiiotts of the parties hereunder. shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and

Executive Council approve this Agreement ("Efrcciivc Date").
3.2 Iflhc Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk oflhc
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Ccnlracior must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding-any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of (he State hereunder. Including,
without limitation, (he continuance of payments hereunder. arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, an(i in no event shall (he Slate be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, (he Sutc shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds bcCTme available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such lermirtaiion. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account idcnlifted in block 1.6 in the event funds in (hat
Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. contract PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
F.XHIBIT 8 which is incorporoicd herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Stale of the contract price shall be the
Only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Sute
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the comract
price.

5.3 The Slate reserves the right to ofTsel from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H, RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Nonvithsianding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances. In
no event shall the (oul of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or (^ly upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright taws.
6.2 During (he lerrh of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of rocc, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of (he
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or (he United Slates issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the Stale or United States access to any of (he
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms end conditions of (his Agreement

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own c;tpcnse provide all
personnel necessary to perform (he Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise auihorizecT (o do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months aflcr the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or ofTicial. who is materially involved in the
procurcmem. administration or performance of (his
Agreement. This provision shall survive icrminaion of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9. or his or
her successor, shall be the Sute's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
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8. EVENT or DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or mort of (he following acts or omissions of (he
Coniracior shall consiilute an event of default hereunder
("Eveni of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule:

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
ofthis Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may (ake any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Del^auU and requiring u to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of DcilauU is
not timely rcmedi^, terminaie this Agreement, efreciivc two
(2) days afler giving the Contractor notice of termination;
82.2 give the Contractor a writicn notice specifying the F.veni
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and orderirtg that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines iKiu the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
82.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contmcior any damages the Suite suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

82.4 (real (he Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. data/access/confidentialitv/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agrecmem, the word "daJa" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. alt studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, lencrs, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished..

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Stale, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9J Confidentiality ofdata shall be govcmcd by N.H. RSA
chapter 9I'A or o^r existing law. Disclosure ofdata requires
prior written approval of the Slate.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Comractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifiecn (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
mailer, content, and number of copies of the Tcrminaiion

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A!

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee ofthe State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Stale to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend.

Indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

Sovereign immunity of the Sutc, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant ir> paragraph 13 shall
survive (he termination ofthis Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S2 50,000 per claim and 52.000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in (he State of New
Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificateis)
of insurance for all insurarKc required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
ideniincd in block 1.9, or his or her successor. ccrtificate(s)of
insurance for all rcncw8)(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (IS) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the instrrancc policies. The
ccrtificatc(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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ccnrriCBic(s} ofinsurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide (he Contracting Officer
identiHed in biock 1.9. or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice orcanceDalion or modification
oflhe policy.

IS. WORKERS* compensation.

15. I By signing (his agreement, the Contractor agrees.
certiHes and warrants that the Contractor Is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
(••Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28 i 'A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
underukc pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
ihc Coniracting OITiccr identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proofof Workers' Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 'A and any applicable
rcnewal(s)thereof, which shall be tutached and are
incorporaicd herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for paymani of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or bcnefii for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with Ihc performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Suic to
enforce any provisiorts hcn.'of after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of Ihc
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of (he Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at (he
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4. herein.

18. amendment. This Agreement rhay be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only aRcf approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the bcncHl of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
(he wording chosen by (he parties to express (heir mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and (his Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement ere
for reference purposes only, and (he words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the imerprclation. construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SCVCRABILITY. In the event any ofihe provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent Jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law. the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effecL

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes (he entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New HampsMro Department of Health & Human Servlcea
Communication Access Services

Exhibit A.1

Spoken Language. Interpretation and translation Services

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
priorities and expendrture requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

1.2. For the purposes of this contract, any references to days shall mean business
days.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide meaningful access to all persons who do business
vrith the Department who may not speak English or have Limited English
Proficiency (LEP). are blind or are visually impaired (VI).

1.4. The Contractor shall provide a uniform arKf comprehensive approach for
individuals to obtain the communication access services they need including:

1.4.1. Current and potential customers of the Department interacting with a
DHHS staff person;

1.4.2. People seeking employment with the Department;

1.4.3. Employees, to permit an employee to perform the essential functions of
his/her job;

1.4.4. The public attending DHHS-sponsored public forums (events,
conferences, meetings, etc.); and

1.4.5. The public receiving DHHS public broadcasts and emergency
communications.

1.5. The Contractor shall:

1.5.1. Provide spoken language Interpretation and written Translation Services
for the Oepa^ent statewide;

1.6.2. Support the communication access services provided to the Department:
and

1.5.3. Work collaborativeiy with the Department to assure compliance with the
federal Civil Rights Laws that require Communlcatiori Access, their
implementing regulations, and guidance.

2. Services to Be Provide

2.1.Spoken Language Interpretation Services

2.1.1. The Contractor shall provide spoken language interpretation services
statewide. The Contractor shall ensure interpretation services:

Mconirt# Community Scnwi ExhiDHA Coninctoi InBiali
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New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services
Communication Access Services

Exhibit A.1

Spoken Language, Interpretation and Translation Services

2.1.1.1. Are available in a variety of languages.

2.1.1.2. Are available twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days per
week.

2.1.1.3. Are available in multiple settings including, but not limited to:

2.1.1.3.1. District offices, satellite offices. Institutions and
various centralized locations throughout the State.

2.1.1.3.2. In the field, such as in clients' homes.

2.1.1.3.3. Public meeting venues.

2.1.2. The Contractor shall provide communication assistance through a variety
of methods, including but not limited to:

2.1.2.1. Face-to-face.(FTF) in-person interpretation.

2.1.2.2. Over-the-phone interpretation (OPI).

2.1.2.3. Video Remote Interpretation (VRI).

2.1.3. The Contractor shall have capacity to provide interpretation services for
scheduled appointments as well as walK-in service / immediate access.

2.1.4. The Contract shall provide site-specific dedicated interpreters (Block)
stationed at high-volume District Offices for scheduled blocks of time
during regular work hours.

2.1.5. The Contractor shall maintain a pool of qualified spoken language
interpreters who:

2.1.5.1. Demonstrate linguistic competency and proficiency in both
English and another language, along with sensitivity to the
culture of individuals needing communication assistance with
the demonstrated ability to accurately relay information In both
languages, fluently.

2.1.5.2. Have completed a minimum of sixty (60) hours of a certified
interpretation training program and. where possible, completed
either Medical Interpretation and/or Legal interpreter certificate
training.

2.1.5.3. Understand interpreter ethics and client confidentiality needs
and abide by the medical/legal interpreter professional code of
conduct.

2.1.5.4. Have passed a NH criminal background check, and, when
.applicable, the Slate Adult Protective Services Registry (see
RSA 161-F:49 Registry, VH). and the Central Registry
(regarding child abuse and neglect) (Vendor bears these
costs; they can be built into proposed budget.)

A#c«ntrta Convnuftity Sefvics* GahbiiA Contr«aoriniti»rt, ^
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New Hampehire Department of Health & Human Servicee
Communication Access Services

Exhibit A.I

Spoken Language. IntorprotatJon end Transtation Services

2.2. Site Specific Dedicated Interpreters

2.2.1. The Contractor shall collaborate with Department staff to ensure
interpreters' time is maximized by providing bi-linguai support services
when direct face-to-face interpretation services are not needed, including
but not limited to:

2.2.1.1. Placing phor^e calls on behalf of DHHS staff.

2.2.1.2. Interpreting telephone messages received on-site and at other
locations.

2.2.1.3. Reading and interpreting written materials for Department staff.

2.2.1.4. Translating written materials (If the interpreter is also a qualified
translator).

2.2.2. The Contractor shall ensure detailed records of all communication
assistance services provided on behalf of the Department are available
for quality assurance and utilization review. The Contractor shall
complete Department-provided electronic tracking templates that Identify
the program area served and the service modality for each client
interaction by interpreter/language and location, including but not limited
to:

2.2.2.1. Scheduled appointments;

2.2.2.2. Walk-in assistance;

2.2.2.3. Telephone assistance;

2.2.2.4. Translations of written documents.

2.2.3. The Contractor shall ensure that any foreseeable interpreter absences
are coordinated with the Department, and that alternative interpreters are
made available for the given period.

2.2.4. The Contractor shall cooperate with periodic reassessments of on-site
interpretation needs every six (6) months. The Contractor shall;

2.2.4.1. Ensure staff are available to work at other locations on a short
term basis, as requested by the Department, when:

2.2.4.1.1. The volume of interpretation needs within the
specified district office is not sufficient to warrant the
specified full-time equivalents.

2.2.4.1.2. A short-term need arises at a different location.

2.2.4.2. Receive a thirty (30) day written advance notice should the
need to reallocate language and interpreter services arise.

A»c«ntns Community Sorvicet A Conltielor Iniliali,

Pige 3 of 7 Oil® t"



New Hampshire Department ot Health & Human Services
Communication Access Services

Exhibit A.I

Spoken Language, interpretation and Translation Services

2.2.5. The Contractor shall provide up to ninety (90) Block-Scheduled hours per
week for the period of July 1, 2015 through December 30, 2015 across
three District Offices is as follows;

Manchester DO Southern 00 Concord DO

Spanish 20 hours 20 hours -

Nepali 8 hours ■  • -

Somali 12 - -

Kinyarwanda - - 12.5

2.3. Translation Services

2.3.1. The Contractor shall translate written materials, as requested, from
English to other languages. Including, but not limited to:

2.3.1.1. Forms..

2.3.1.2. Brochures.

2.3.1.3. Documents.

2.3.2. The Contractor shall translate eligibility materials submitted by applicants
and clients from other languages to English so that Department staff are
able to appropriately evaluate the non-English written documentation
submitted by individuals.

2.4. Other Mandated Services

2.4.1. The Contractor shall provide effective, equitable, understandable and
respectful quality care and services that are responsive to diverse cultural
health beliefs and practices, preferred languages, health literacy and
other communication needs.

2.4.2. The Contractor shall respond to unplanned, urgent needs for
communication access with less than forty-eight (48) hours advance
notice.

2.4.3. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with Department staff to learn
the variety of sen/ices, available in order for vendor staff to be able to
describe these services to clients/applicants.

2.4.4. The Contractor shall train Department staff on the variety of
communication access services available through this contract as well as
the specific processes and procedures used for accessing services.

2.4.5. The Contractor shall update and provide.a current list of available
interpreters and translators.

2.4.6. The Contractor shall support communication access services provided to
the Department, including but not limited to:

AuenUla Communily 5erv)c«i Exhibrt A
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Now Hampshire Department of Health & Human Servlcos
Communication Access Services

Exhibit A.I

Spoken Language, Intarpretatlon and Translation Services

2.4.6.1. Creating or updating informational materials, language
identification cards and instructions.

2.4.6.2. Providing a single point of contact individual responsible for all
services in this contract who is able to address all questions
and concerns, as needed.

2.4.7. The Contractor shall work closely and collaborativety with Department
staff to assure communication access needs are being met effectively by:

2.4.7.1. Performing quality assurance activities.

2.4.7.2. Participating in the DHHS Communication Access Work Group,
comprised of cross Department representatives as well as
external stakeholders.

2.4.7.3. Developing and providing regular data and reports that Indicate
trends and needs of services provided, statewide.

2.4.7.4. Responding to annual assessments and feedback from
divisions within the Department to meet communication needs
statewide.

2.4.7.5. Modifying the proposed service delivery model in response to
these inputs, as needed, to assure continuous quality
improvement.

2.4.8. The Contractor shall provide a centralized appointment scheduling
system, which is accessed via a secured web-portal. The Contractor
shall maintain and preserve electronic retrievable individual records
relating to each individual served and every service encounter or
transaction provided by this contractor, preferably linked to the
centralized appointment scheduling system, to permit analysis of
utilization by both the Contractor and the Department. The contractor
shall provide the Department authorized users with free access to the
web-portal and database for scheduling, and access for the Department
to a variety of reporting tools. .

2.4.9. The Contractor shall ensure that the web-portal and database is a
secured website that ensures the privacy rights of individuals served. All
Information must be maintained in accordance with standards for
confidentiality of all participant information that Is acquired by any means.

3. Performance Expectations and Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide the Department with data, information, and reports in
order to monitor communication access service utilization, compliance with
contract requirements, and contract performance measures, as needed. The
Contractor shall ensure date. Information and reports include but are not limited
to:

AsanlrUCommunilyScfvicw EKhiHilA Corttrador tnitiH
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New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services
Communication Access Services

Exhibit A.1

Spoken Language, Interpretation and Translation Services

3.1.1. The type, frequency and duration of communication assistance provided
to different audiences based on the unit of encounters and/or individuals.

3.2. The Contractor shall report any client concerns or complaints to the Department
within 3 business days. The vendor shall notify the Department immediately if any
client scheduling issues or conflicts arise, and work to find a mutually agreeable
solution.

3.3.The Contractor shall submit progress reports to OHHS on a quarterly basis in a
Department approved format and shall inctude. but not be limited to:

3.3.1. A summary project outcomes.

3.3.2. Benchmarks reached.

3.3.3. Barriers to reaching benchmarks.

3.3.4. Solutions to barriers experienced in the previous quarter, which shall
include, but not be limited to proposed changes to services or work
processes for Department approval.

3.4. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Department to finalize the
required performance measures and methodology. At a minimum, the
Contractor's delivered services must achieve the following outcomes, which shall
be reported every 6 months:

3.4.1. Individuals served feel their communicatior^ access needs were met

as evidenced by 85% of individuals surveyed report they are satisfied
with the interpreting services. (The contractor must survey 50% of the
individuals served within the reporting period, proportional to the
language/population served.)

3.4.2. DHHS staff feel they are able to appropriately serve Individuals with
communication access needs as evidenced by 85% of staff surveyed
report that the contractor appropriately delivered services. (The
contractor must survey 20% of DHHS staff utilizing the service within the
reporting period.)

3.4.3 DHHS staff have the translated written materials they need in order
to serve clients effectively as evidenced by staff who submit document
translation requests receive back the translated materials in the target
language within fourteen (14) calendar days. 90% of the time.

3.4.4. Communication Access service capacity Is consistently maintained
as evidenced by 100% of DHHS' submitted interpretation/communication
access requests are fulfilled, or a mutually agreeable altemative is
provided by the selected vervJor.

3.5. The Contractor shall provide updates and report on their progress towards
meeting performance measures, and overall program goals and objectives at in-

Ajcerttria Community S«/vice» e*M6ilA Conutaof InitiUa ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health ft Human Services
Communication Access Services

Exhibit A.I

Spoken Leneuage. Interpretation and Translation Services

person monthly meetings for the First 6 months of the project period and quarterly
meetings with monthly telephone check-ins and e-mails, as needed, thereafter.
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Now Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Communciatlon Access Services

Exhibit A.2

ASL, CART and Other Services for Individuals with Deafness and Hearing Loss

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to A!) Services

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
Gerteral Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priortties and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.2. For the purposes of this contract, any references to days shall mean business days.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide meaningful access to all persons who do business with the
Department who are Deaf or who have Hearing Loss.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide a uniform and comprehensive approach for individuals to
obtain the communicalion access services they need Including:

1.4.1. Current and potential customers of the Department interacting with a DHHS staff
person:

1.4.2. People seekif^ employment with the Department;

1.4.3. Employees, to permit an employee to perform the essential functions of his/her
job;

1.4.4. The public attending DHHS-sponsored public forums (events, conferences,
meetings, etc.); and.

1.4.5. The public receiving DHHS public broadcasts and emergency communications.

1.5. The Contractor shall:

1.5.1. Provide the following communication access services for the Department
^  statewide:

1.5.1.1. American Sign Language (ASL);

1.5.1.2. Certified Deaf Interpretation (CDl);

1.5.1.3. Oral Interpretation;

1.5.1.4. Tactile Interpretation (for the Deaf/blind);

1.5.1.5. Cued Speech Interpretation; and

1.5.1.6. Communicalion Access Real Time (CART) Services.

1.5.2. Support the communication access services provided to the Department; and

1.5.3. Work collaboratively with the Department to assure compliance with the federal
Civil Rights Laws that require Communication Access, their implen>en}lng
regulations. ar>d guidance.

2. Services to Be Provide

2.1. Communication Access Services

Arl/iV)
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Now Hampshire Departmont of Health and Human Services
Communctation Access Services

Exhibit A.2

ASL, CART and Other Services for Individuals with Deafness and Hearing Loss

2.1.1. The Contractor shall provide communication access services statewide. The
Contractor shall ensure communication access services:

2.1.1.1. Include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1.1.1. An^rican Sign Language (ASL) Interpreters:

2.1.1.1.2. Certified Deaf Interpreters (CDI);

2.1.1.1.3. Oral Interpreters;

2.1.1.1.4. Deaf-Blind Tactile Interpreters;

2.1.1.1.5. Cued Speech Interpreters: and

2.1.1.1.6. Communication Access Real-Time (CART) Services

2.1.1.2. Are available twenty-four (24) hours a day. seven (7) days per week.

2.1.1.3. Are availabte in multiple settings including, but not limited to;

2.1.1.3.1. District offices, satellite offices, institutions and various
centralized locations throughout the State.

•2.1.1.3.2. In the field, such as in clients' hon>es.

2.1.1.3.3. Public meeting venues.

2.1.1.4. Allow Individuals to have access to preferred interpreters, as
available.

2.1.2. The Contractor shall provide communication assistance through a variety of
methods, including but not limited to:

2.1.2.1. Face-to-face (RTF) Irvperson interpretation.

2.1.2.2. In-person CART Services.

2.1.2.3. Remote CART Services

2.1.2.4. Video Remote Interpretation (VRI) Services.

2.1.3. The Contractor shall have capacity to provide communication access services
for scheduled appointments as well as walk-in service / immediate access.

2.1.4. The Contractor shall nnaintain a pool of qualified staff who are licensed by the
NH Interpreter Liccnsure Board and approved under the NH Department of
Education (DOE), under RSA 326-1 who:

2.1.4.1. Derrwnstrate linguistic competency and proficiency In both English
and another language/modatity. along with sensitivity to the culture of
individuals needing communication assistance, and the
demonstrated ability to accurately relay Information In both
languages or rruxlalities fluently.

2.1.4.2. Understand interpreter ethics and client confidentiality needs and
abide by the professional code of conduct.

2.1.4.3. Have passed a NH criminal background check, and. when
applicable, the State Adult Protective Services Registry (see RSA

AiCOnlrttCommunXyScfvlCM ExhWtA CooUKtof
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New Hampshire Department of Health end Human Services
Communclation Access Services

Exhibit A.2

ASL. CART and Other Services for Individuals with Deafness and Hearing Loss

161-F:49 Registry. VII). and the Central Registry (regarding child
abuse and neglect) (Vendor bears'these costs; they can be built into
proposed bud9et.)Site SpeciHc Dedicated Interpreters

2.2. Other IMandated Services

2.2.1. The Contractor shall provide effective, equitable, understandable and respectful
quality care and services that are responsive to diverse cultural health beliefs
and practices, preferred languages, health literacy and other communication
needs.

2.2.2. The Contractor shall respond to unplanned, urgent needs for communlcatjon
access with less than forty-eight (48) hours advance notice.

2.2.3. The Contractor shall worV collabcratively with Department staff to team the
variety of services available in order for vendor staff to be able to describe these
services to clients/applicants.

■  2.2.4. The Contractor shall train Department staff on the variety of communication
access services available through this contract as well as the specific processes
and procedures used for accessing services.

2.2.5. The Contractor shall update and provide a current list of available Interpreters
/communication access staff to the Department on a quarterty basis.

2.2.6. The Contractor shall support communication access services provided to the
Deparlmenl. including but not limHed to:

2.2.6.1. Creating or updating informational communication identification cards
.  and instructions.

2.2.6.2. Providing a single point of contact Individual responsible for all
services in this contract who is able to address all questions and
concerns, as needed.

2.2.7. The Contractor shall work closely and collabcratively with Department staff to
assure communication access needs are being met effectively by:

2.2.7.1. Performing quality assurance activities.

2.2.7.2. Participating in the' OHHS Communication Access Work Group
comprised of cross Department representatives as well as external
stakeholders.

2.2.7.3. Developing and providing regular data and reports that indicate
trends and needs of services provided, statewide.

2.2.7.4. Responding to annual assessments and feedback from divisions
within the Department to meet communication needs statewide.

2.2.7.5. Modifying the proposed service delivery model in response to these
ihputs, as needed, to assure continuous quality improvement.

2.2.8. The Contractor shall provide a centralized appointment scheduling system,
which Is accessed via a secured web-portal. The Contractor shall maintain and
preserve electronic retrievable individual records relating to each Individual

xicentri» Communtty S«fvic« A Conirrctof ifrtian
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communclatlon Access Services

Exhibit A.2

ASL, CART and Other Services for Individuals with Deafness and Hearing Loss

served and every service encounter or transaction provided by this contractor,
preferably linked to the centralized appointment scheduling system, to permit
analysis of utilization by both the Contractor and the Department. The
contractor shall provide the Department authorized us^s with free access to the
web-porlal and database for scheduling, and access for the Department to a
variety of reporting tools. .

2.2.9. The Contractor shall ensure that the web-portal and database is a secured
website that ensures the privacy rights of individuals served. All information
must be maintained in accordance with standards for confidentiality of all
participant information that Is acquired by any means.

3. Performance Expectations and Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide the Department wrth data, information, and reports In order

to monitor communication access service utilization, compliance with contract
requirements, and contract performance measures, as needed. The Contractor shall
ensure dale, information and reports include but are not limited to;

3.1.1. The type, frequency and duration of communication assistance provided to
different audiences based on the unit of encounters and/or individuals.

3.2. The Contractor shall report any client concerns or complaints to the Department within 3
business days. The vendor shall notify the Department immediately if any client
scheduling issues or conflicts arise, and work to find a mutually agreeable solution.

3.3. The Contractor shall submit progress reports to DHHS on a quarterly basis in a
Departrrrent approved format and shall Include, but not be limited to:

3.3.1. A summary of project outcomes.

3.3.2. Benchmarks reached.

3.3.3. Barriers to reaching benchmarks.

3.3.4. Solutions to barriers experienced in the previous quarter, which shall Include but
not be limited to proposed changes to services or work processes for
Department approval.

3.4. The Contractor shall work collaboratlvely with the Department to finalize the required
performance measures and methodology. At a minimum, the Contractor's delivered
senrices must achieve the follovring outcomes, which shall be reported every 6 months:

3.4.1. Individuals served feel their communication access needs were met as
evidenced by 85% of Individuals surveyed report they are satisfied with the
interpreting services. (The contractor must survey 50% of the individuals served
within the reporting period, proportional to the language/population served.)

3.4.2. DHHS staff feel they are able to appropriately serve individuals with
communication access needs as evidenced by 85% of staff surveyed report
thai the contractor appropriately delivered services. (The contractor must
survey 20% of DHHS staff utilizing the service within the reporting period.)

Ajcertria commun'iy S«ryi«> ExhtoSA Coolt>dof InaiHi
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communciatlon Access Services

Exhibit A.2

ASL. CART and Other Services for Individuals with Deafness and Hearing Loss

3.4.3. OHMS staff have the translated written materials they need In order to
serve clients effectively as evidenced by staff who submit document
translation requests receive t}acK the translated materials in the target language
within fourteen (14) calendar days, 90% of the lime.

3.4.4. Communication Access service capacity Is consistently maintained as
evidenced by 100% of OHHS' submitted interpretation/communication access
requests are futfiited, or a mutually agreeable alternative is provided by the
selected vendor.

3.5. The Contractor shall provide updates and report on their progress towards meeting
performance measures, and overall program goals and objectives at in-person monthly
meetings for the first 6 months of the project period and quarterly meetings with monthly
telephone check-ins arxJ e-mails, as needed, thereafter.
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New Hampshire Oopartment of Health and Human Services
Communlcatlcn Access Services

Exhibits

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block 1.8.
for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded wHh general and federal funds. Department access to supporting
funding for this project is dependent upon the criteria set forth In the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) fhttDS://w\w.cfda.govV

2.1. #93.044 ♦ Department of Health and Human Services. Administration for
Community Living A-Formula Grants. Older Americans Act

2.2. #93.659 - Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children and
Families. A- Formula Grants. Adoption Opportunities

2.3. #93.658 - Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children and
Families. A- Formula Grants, B-Project Grants. Foster Care

2.4. #93.563 - Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families. A- Formula Grants. Child Support Enforcement

2.5. #93.778 - Department of Health & Human Services, Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services. A- Formula Grants. Medical Assistance Program

2.6. #93.667 - Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children and
Families. A- Formula Grants. Social Services Block Grant.

2.7. #93.767 - Department of Health & Human Services. Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services. A- Formula Grants. 8 - Project Grants; Children s Health
Insurance Program.

2.8. #93.558 - Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children and
Families; A- Formula Grants. L- Dissemination of Technical Information; Temporary
Assistance to Needy Families.

2.9. #10.561 - Department of Agriculture Food and Nutrition Service; A - Formula
Grants; State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program.

3 The Contractor-shall use and apply all contract funds for allowable direct and indirect costs
to provide services in Exhibit A1 and Exhibit A2, In accordance with Exhibit B-1 through
ExhibH

4. The Contractor shall not use or apply contract funds for capital additions or improvements,
entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the Department.

5. Payment for said services shall be made as follows;
5.1. The Contractor will submit an Invoice by the tenth (10"^) working day of each month,

which identifies and requests reimbursement for:

5.1.1. Authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

5.1.2. The units of services provided, in accordance with Exhibit A1 and Exhibit A2
which shall be paid on a fee-for-service basis the rates specified In Exhibit B-
1 through Exhibit B-4.

con^.cc. M.!.:,,
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Communication Access Services

Exhibit B

5.2. The State shall ntake payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

5.3. The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to;

Ken Merrifield. Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

E-mail: Kenneth.merrlfie!d@dhhs.state.nh.us

6. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37.
General Provisions. Contract Completion Date. Block 1.7.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of norwompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provid^, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreenvent.

8. ttotwilhstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37. General Provisions, an amendment
limited to transfer the funds within the budgets in Exhibit B-1 and Exhibit B-2 and within the
price limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made
without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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Now Hampshire Department of Hearth and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obtlgations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to efigibfe
individuals and. in the furtherarKe of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws; If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of ̂ drviduals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state taws, regutations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time end Manr>er of Oetermlnetlon: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed^by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition-to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of sen/ices hereunder, which file shall Include all
irtformation necessary to support an eiigibiBty determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibiiity determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that aa applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineftgibie have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Corttractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
heafir>g tn accordance with Department regulations. '

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks; The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if ills
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments; Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor lor costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individuat is eligible for such services.

7. Condltlorrs of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rale
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess ol such costs or in excess of such rales charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other tNrd party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rales for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs:
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibiilty of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ad funds paid by the Oepahment to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who Is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: in addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants arxJ agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
6.1. Fiscal Records: boohs, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor durtr>g the Contract Period, seid records to be
maintained in accordartce with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, bocks, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in^ind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statisbcal Record's: Statistical, enrollment attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and •
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services artd all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Ofganteations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental OrganizatJons.
Programs. Activities and FutKtions. issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for relenlion hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Hutnan Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract. It Is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, ail payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or wtiich have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the pefformance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to stale laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use arwJ disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection wllh their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to ihe administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concernir>g a recipient for any purpose not
diractly conriected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibiiities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shaii survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Oepartmeni
11. t. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed deschptron of

all costs and non-allowable expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the diate of the report and
containing such other information as shaf) be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rale of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
corrtain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract ar>d upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shaD terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shad disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor' as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

. 13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the foUowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report document etc.) was Financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operalion of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
stale, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Offtcer Of officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall l>e required for the operation of the said facility,or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the lemns and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection \Mth the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the ladtities shad
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conlonmance with local building,and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Gmpioymont Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity PUn (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of 3500.600 or more. If the recipient receives 325,000 or more and has SO or
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more employees. il will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an GEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certificatton Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http://www.ojp.usdo^about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited Enptlsh Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 1316.8, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationai origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control 8r>d Sale Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meanir>gful access to its programs.

16. Pilot Program for Enhancoment of Contractor Employea Whistleblower Protectiona: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simf^ified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and requirement To inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 20i 3) /

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will bo subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in Ihe pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing. In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower fights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.M8 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shad insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplrfied acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHMS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for Ihe function($). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the detegation or imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the foltowir^g;
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the furtctlon

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibititles and how sanctions/revocation vrill be managed if the subcontractor's
pertormance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractors performarKe on an ongoing basis

EjtfWSil C - Spvdal PrcMttofu ' Contrtclor tnilisU
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19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subconuactor's performance wll) be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
taxe corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used In the Contract, the foltowing terms shall have the foUowtng meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursabte in accordance vwth cost and accounting principles estaWished in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
Individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms end conditions of the Contract and selling forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individudls hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state taws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referied to in the Conlract. the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of alt regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. fW RSA Ch 54 t-A. for the purpose of imptemcnling Slate of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVIStONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of (his contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwilhstandihg any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereurKJer. ifKluding wittwul limitation, ihe comir>uance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of fuf>ds affected by
any state or federal .legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise .
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever. The
Slate shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or nxxflfication.
The. State shati not be'required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Accountfs) Identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other

•  account. In ihe event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract Termination. Is amended by adding the
foAovt^g language;

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Slate. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice thai the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement. Including but rrot limited to. Identifyirig the present and future needs of clients
receiving services urrder the Agreement ar\d estabHshes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detaUed
Information to support the Transition Plan Including, but rrot limited to. any information or
data requested by the Stale related to the termination of the Agreement ar>d Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

•  10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are irensHioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the Slate, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Trans'ition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying dients and other affected Individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall tndude the proposed communications in Its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract, is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily Injury, death or
property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and 51,000,000 per
occurrerKe with additional general liability umbrella coverage of not less than $1,000,000:
and

4. The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for op to four additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor
and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATtON REGARDING DRUG.PREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor IdentHied in Section t.3 ol the GeneraJ Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Orug-Free WorVplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Tltte V. Subtitle 0; 4i
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certiOcabon is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
WortcplaceActof 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require ccrttficafton by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that (s a State
may elect to make one, certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the' federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspenson or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, dfstribulion.

dispensing, possession or use of a conirolled substance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The darvgers of drug abuse in (he workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a dnjg-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs: and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurrir>g in the M>r1(place;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) thai, as a condition of

emptoyment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the emptoyer in veiling of his or her convlclion for a violation of a criminal dnrg

statute occurring In the vwirkplace r>o later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. NoUfyIng the agency in vtriting, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employcfs of conv'rcted employees must provide nolice. including position title, to every grant
offrcer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

EkhibH D - C«rtiflcHlon r^gifding Drug FfM ConUlctOf rnfUall
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haa designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identirication number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
(aw enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug>free workplace through
implementsiion of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3. 1.4, i.S, and i.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the site(s) lor the performance of work done in
conrtection with the specific grant.

Place of Perfomtance (street address. cHy, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file (hat are not identified here.

Contractor Name; fi.Sre.Ttrlci lihC

Date Name:

^vjP \CO0
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CERTIFICATION REOAROING LOBBYING

The Comrador identified in Section 1.3 of tt^e General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public tav^ 101-121. Government vnde Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ■ CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Titfe XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Developmerrt Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to ihe best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal approprrated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of ihe undersigned, to
any person for influencmg or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection wtth the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
en officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in conr^ection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shaU complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying,' In accordance with Its instructions, attached and tdeniified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sut>-8werds at all tiers (includirig subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and thai all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when ihis transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
cerlification shall be subject lo a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and nol more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: AsCf.-fWiia ̂(111/1-) ,1^| ServtCfS,

Dale Name: v

E - Certification Regarding Lobbying CooUacto* irHtiaia.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING OEBARMENT. SUSPENStON

AND OTHER RESPONSIBtLITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 75 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and l.12of the General Provisions execute thefoDov^ng
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submltttng tt^a proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit on
explanation of why it cannot provide the cerilflcalion. The ceniflcalion or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination v^ether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knov^ngiy rerKfered an erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Govemmeni, OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective pnmary participant shall provide immediate whiten notice to the OHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certificaticn wii erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,* "debarred.* "suspended." "ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction.* "participant." 'person.* "primary covered transaction," "principal.* 'proposal.* and
"voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by sutxnitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary pariicipant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will rncfude the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, ineligibiltty and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it Knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibiiity of its principals. Each
participanl may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

ExnifiH F - CtrtincaOon R«B««ln9 Dflbiiment. Suspension Conlrictor Initials
Ano Olhor Responsibility Metteu
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Now Hampshiro Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a pnjdent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, rf a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, OHHS may termirtate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knovdedge and belief, that it and its
principals;
tl.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

votuntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civi) Judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection wHh obtainmg. attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a pub&c transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have npl within a three-year period preceding this appiicatiorVproposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary partcipani is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By s'lgniAg and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief thai it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared IneDgible, or

votuntahty excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it win
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* without mddification in aD lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name;

Dale NameTT^i^C'Si^vsNr^^

Eieublt F - Cenific«l*en Regaitlnfl Oatennenl. Sutp»n<>on ContracJor inkiaU
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New Hampehiro Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAfTH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor kJentifred In Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor v/il) comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any appilcabie
federal nondlscrimination requirements, which may Include:

. the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of ̂ 968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
(he delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligatior^ of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employmenl Opportunity Plan requirements:

• the CMI Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 20()0d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehablfitallon Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disabifity. in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972(20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683. 1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs:

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discriminalion on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 26 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizatlons);.Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-mairing
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblowcr protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Ad (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
EnharKement of Contract Employee WNsllcblowef Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contrads.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payn^ents. suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment

exnoioo
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New Hempshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process heahrvg on the grourvls of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division vnthin the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Senrlces Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section t.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections t.tt and l.l2o1the General Provisions, to execute the following
cerbficabon:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

l-K
Date Name; v/AvCv

Contractor Name; un i"^ i.| Se.-vitts JlOC

ExMbh 0
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N«w Hsmpvhiro Dopartm^nt of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103*227. Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also knovm as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or reguiarty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal {programs erther
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant. contracL loan, or loan guarantee. The
taw does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resuR in the imposition of a civil monetatv penalty of up to
$1000 per day andfor the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following ■
certiftcation:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Dale Name:

ExNbH H - Cartiflcitlon R»fl»r<3in9 ConMetor IniUiH
EnvvonmenllJ T«b«cco Smokeemu iCMCCO amoKB
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

>

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portabiiity and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate* has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aaoregation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR-
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Ooefations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle 0. Part 1 S 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section i^.50i(g).

j. 'Pfivacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United Stales
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/20U EkNUHI Cort/tdof Inlliib
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 184.103.

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Huiman Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the ProtKtlon of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Parl 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and ts developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Paris 160,162 and 164, as amended from lime to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosufe of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate. Including but not limited to alt
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that woutd constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and.administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for Ihe health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agr^ment to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to makirig any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentiatly ar^
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to (he third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis (hat it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 EsNbti I Contractor Inltiala
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit!

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notiftes the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Qblloatioris and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that nrtay have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0  The.nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessrnent within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary (or
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party benefidary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Conlncio* tnlllab
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P>37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shad provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Busiriess Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity rriay require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shati within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
indrvidual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) busiriess days of termination of the Agreernent, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of (he PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business ^
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NOW Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHi. if Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or ail PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

%

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly ratify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.

■  to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Tefmination for Cause '

• In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

($) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reaulatotv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule,

3/2014 e*nibi1l Comrectof
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Seoreoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person($) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the proleclions of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and condKions (P'37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

tate

Signature of Authorized Representative

,1 hcJialoS A. ToiLn.
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Name of the Contractor

)nature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized' Representative
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CERTIFICATfON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATAt COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October t. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated frst^tier sub-grants of S25.000 or more. If the
Initial avwd is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the av^rd is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of HeaRh and Human Services (DHHS) must report the folloviring information for any
subaward or contract award sut>}ect to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Name of entity
Amount of award

Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
Program source
Avirard title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique ktentifier of the entity (DUNS 9)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-262 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections t.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions,
execute the following Certification;
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountabinty and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name; Ascc,Tlr»c^ loc

6 1 1^
Date Name:

foe' \LOO
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rgRMA

As the Contractor identrfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. tn your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: ar^d (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 1S(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act pf 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to'03 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount:

Amount.

CUOHHfcrnO'O
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